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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of Banque Saudi Fransi
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Banque Saudi Fransi {the
“Bank™} and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consclidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statement, statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
poticies and other explanatory notes from (1} to {44). We have not audited notes (40) and (41), and
the information related to “Basel [lI — Capital structure and Pillar 3 disciosores” cross-referenced
therein, which are not required to be within the scope of our audit.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for Financial Institutions issued by the Saudi
Arabian Monetary Agency (“SAMA™), International Financial Reporting Standards, the provisions
of the Regulations for Companies, the Banking Control Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the
Bank’s Articles of Association , and for such infermal controls as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

COur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audii involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial! statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consclidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial siaiements taken as a whole:

+  present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2013, and their financial performance and cash flows for the vear then ended
in accordance with Accounting Standards for Financial Institutions issued by the Saudi
Arabian Monetary Agency and with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards; and

* comply with the requirements of the Regulations for Companies, the Banking Control Law in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Bank’s Articles of Association in so far as they affect the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers KPMG Al Fozan & Al Sadhan
P.O. Box B282 P.O. Box 92876
Rivadh 11482 Riyadh 11663

rabia Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

. Al Obaidi Tareq A. Al Sadhan
Certified Public Accountant Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 367 Registration No. 352

February 9, 2014
% Rabi Al Akhir 1435H
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BANQUE SAUD] FRANSI

CONRSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Decomber 31, 2013 and 2012

Notes

SAR' Q00 2013 212
ASSETS
Cash and balances with SAMA 4 18,139,603 15,233,244
Due from banks and sther financial institutions 5 1,545,091 5,435,375
Investments, net i) 34,298,873 27 407 9og
Loans and advances, nal i 141,208,904 102,785,372
Invesiment in associafes 8 165,270 171,845
Praperty and equipment, nel g 619,913 641,305
Other assefs 0 3,980,015 6,012,058
Total assets 179,056,674 157,777,302
LIABILITIES AND EQUATY
Liakilities
Due o banks and other financial institutions 12 3,667 893 5,662 468
Customers® deposits 13 131,607,187 115,571,767
Tesm loans 14 - 1,778,306
Debt securties and Sukuks 15 7,130,101 7,130,041
Cither liabilities 16 4,440,862 4,947 902
Total liabifities 146,840,043 135,090,484
Equity
Share capital 17 9,040,178 2,040,179
Statutory resenve 18 9,040,178 7,553,621
General reserve 18 982 857 D82 857
Oiies reserves L] 268,668 892,378
Relained earnings 3,884,748 3,407,783
Propased dividend 2 - 810,000
Tatal equity 23,1653 22 626,518
P d equt
Total liahilities and equity 170,056 574 157777302

The accompanying notes 1 to 44 form an infegral part of these consolidated finandial statements
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BANGUE SAUD| FRANSI
CONSCOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

* Notes '

SAR' 000 2013 012
Special commission income 21 4,257,050 4 069,280
Special commissicn expense 2 893,747 763,503
- Met special commission income 3,363,303 3,306,777
Feas and commission incarmne, net 22 1,149,565 1,173,483
Exchange income, net 281,839 246,519
Trading income, net 23 105,712 138,034
Dividend income 2 21,423 21,379
Gains on nog trading Investments, nel 25 80,134 78
Cther operating income 2 50,509 45,588
Total operating income 5,052,535 5,008,551
Salaries and employee refated expenses 852,546 575 656
Rent and premisas related expenses 163,707 137,483
Depreciation and amortization g 123,433 129,598
Cther general and administrative expenses 42254 405 426
Impaimnent charge for credit losses, net T 957,420 455,175
Impaiment charge for investment, net 8,528 (11,2509
Other operating expenses e 15,077 3.008
Total operating expenses 2,650,283 1,996 216
Net operating income 2,402,252 3,013,338
Shiare in earmings of associates, net B 3323 1.801
| Net income for the year 2,405,515 3,015,136
Basic and difuted eamings per share {in SAR] 28 2.66 3.34

The accompanying notes 1 ko 44 form an integrat part of these consolidated financial statements
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BANQUE SAUD! FRANSI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

| SAR’ 000 Notes 013 aH2

|
| ,
| Net income for the year 2405575 | 3.015.136

Cther comprehensive income f{loss)
Items that can be recycled back to consolidated statement of income in

i Future

Available for sale investments

Met change in the fair value o | 71,286 41173
+ Nel amount transferred to consolidated statement of income 19 (74,034} {5,204}

Cash flow hedge

. Effective portion of change in the fair value 19 77233 566,255
Met amaunt transterred to consdlidated stafement of income 19 (543,729} {585,589
Total comprehensive income for the yaar 1,781,865 3031 491

The accompanying notes 1 ta 44 form an integral part of these consolidated Anancial statements
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BANQUE SAUDI FRANSI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Far the years ended Dacember 31, 2013 and 2012

Attributable to equity halders of the Bank
Other reserves
Availabla for
Share Statutory General Retained sales Gash flow Proposed

SAR' 000 Notes capital resrve reserve sarningg Investmants hedges tividand Total
20038
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,040,178 7453421 382 857 3,407,783 (27,877) 920,255 810,000 22,686,818
Tolal tomprehensive Income 1or the year -

Netincome for the year . . - 2,405,575 - - . 2405575

Nelchange in the fair valye 19 - . . - 71,286 {77,233) - {5,047)

Net amoun} iransieried o consclidated siatement of income 19 . - . . (74,034} {543,729) . (617,763}
Transfer to statutary reserve 18 1,486,558 - {1,486,558)
Final dividand-2012 Pt . . - . . . {610,000 (810,000}
Tax and Zakat provision pat] . . - {44,242} - . {44,242}
Intarim gross dividend jor 2013 2% . - . (207,840) B . {397,810)
Balance atthe end of the year 8,040,170 49,040,179 BR2RST 3,884,748 {30,625) 299,283 ‘ . 23,216,831
012
Galance al the beginning of Ibw ygar 7,232,143 6,799,837 982857 3,764 467 (63.846) 039,869 - 19,655,327
Total comprehensiva income for the yoar

Nat income for the year 9 - - - 3,015,136 - - 3,015,135

Ned change in the lair valug 19 - - - - 4,173 466,255 - 507 428

Mzt amount transfermed 1o consolidalod statement of ingome - - - - {5.204) (h85,864) . {591,073)
Tranzfer to statulory reserve 18 - 753,784 . (753,784) -
Slack dividend 1,808,036 - - (1,808,036 .
Propoged final dividend for 2012 2 - - - (810,000 - - 810,000
Balance at the end of the year 9,040,179 7,553,621 982,857 3,407,783 {27.817) 820,255 810,000 72 686,818

Mw; a0 '
The accompanying notes 1 1o 44 form an | f:qn ted financial statements
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BANQLUE SAUDI FRANSI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Mutes-

SAR" 000 2013 2112
© QPERATING ACTIVITIES .
. Met income for the year 2 405,575 3.015,138
Adjustments ta reconcle netincome to net cash from {used in) operating activiies
Accretion of discounts on non-rading invesiments, net {142,556) (54,447 7
3ains en non trading investmen's, net (80,164} (78,771)
Depreciation and amosization 128,483 ! 125,593
{3ains on disposal of properiy and equipment, net {(217) 143
- Impairenent charge for credit losses, net 457,420 455 175
Impaimaent charge for Investmenl 46,329 -
Share in 2arnings froem associates, net {3.3123) {1.801)
Change in Fair value of financial insfruments 133463 {131,784}
3,444,990 3,333,063
Met (increase] f decrease in operating assets:
Statiary deposit with SAMA 4 (1 471,178) (661,759
Investments held as FWIS (trading) {13,3900 182,322
Loans and adwvances, nef (9,582,214} | (10,908,540}
Otiher assets 1,385,005 {413,779
Het increase [ [decrease] in cperafing liabifities:
Due o banks and other financial institutions (1,994,575) 3,508, 7R}
Customers' deposits 16,025,066 5578776
Other Babifities {544,595 382,087
Net cash from operating activities 7,248,805 1,200,870
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Procesds irom sale and malurities of nen trading investments 23,408,742 11,022,895
Purchase of non rading investments (30.011,562) | (21,564,128)
Acquisition of property and equipmant {07,122} (190,5900
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 243 723
Net cash used in investing activities {6,709,69% | {11.031,100)
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of term lpans (1,784, 400) -
Proeeeds from issuance of debt sacurities and Swuks - 4,712 500
Dividends paid P’ {1,207,810
Net cash [used in) firom financing activities 2,992 210} 4712500
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,455,104} (3,117,730
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,351,151 18,468,881
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year 30 11,896,047 14,351,151
Special commission received during the year 4,232,015 4,079,235
Special commission paid during the year 685,013 FF0314
Supplemental non cash information
Net changes in fair value and transfers to consdlidated statement of income {623,710 16,355

wm&:@nwng notes 1to 44 form an integral part of these consolidated finandia) statemenls
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BANQUE SAUDI FRANSI
NCTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the years ended December 31, 2043 and 2012

1

et
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General

Bangque Saudi Fransi {BSF the Bank) is a Saudi Joint Steck Company established by Royal Decres No. M/23
dated Jumada At Thani 17, 1397H (corresponding to June 4, 1977). The Bank formally commenced its aclivities
an KMuharram 1, 1398H {corresponding to Becember 11, 1877), by taking over the operations of the Banque de
I'Indoching et de Suez in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Bank operates under Commercial Registration
Mumber. 1010073368 dated Safar 4, 1410H {comresponding to September 5, 1989}, through its 83 branches
{2012: B8 branches) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, with 2,988 employees {2012; 2,677). The objective of the
Bank is to provide & full range of banking sarvices, including Istamic produsts, which are approved and supervised
by an independent Shanah Board. The Bank's Head Office is located at Al Maa'ther Street, P.O. Box 56006,
Riyadh 11554, Kingdom of Saudi Arabfa.

The Bank owns a subsidiary, Saudi Fransi Capilal (99% direct share in equity and 1% indirect share beneficially
held by a direclor of the Bank} engaged in brokerage, asset management and corporate finance business. The
Bank owns Saudi Fransi [nsurance Agency (SAFIA), Saudi Fransi Financing & Leasing and Sakan Real Estale
Financing having 100% share in equity. These subsidiaries are incorparated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The
Bank also owns BSF Sukuk Limited having 100% share in squity, incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Bank
acquired the additional shareholding in Sefinco Saudi Fransi 50%{previously an associate with 50% share in
equily} to achieve 100% shareholding in the company. Sofinco Saudi Fransi's consumer finance business and
related net assets have been [ransferred to Saudi Fransi Financing & Leasing. The shareholders of the Sofinco
Saudi Fransi have agreed Io liquidate the company after finalizing the transfer of the assets and liabiliies and
setfement of all legal obligations.

The Bank has investments in associates and owns 27% shareholding in Banque BEMO Saudi Fransi,
incorporated in Syria and 32.5% shareholding in Saudi Fransi Corporafive Insurance Company (Alianz Saudi
Fransi) incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Basis of preparation
a] Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial stalements are prepared in accerdance with the Accounting Standards for Financial
instituffons promulgated by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA) and International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS). The Bank prepares its consolidated financial statemenis to comply with the requirements of
Banking Contrad Law, the provisions of Requiatiens for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Bank's
Adticles of Association,

b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated firancial statements are prepared under the hisforical cost convention except for the
measurement at fair value of derivatives, available for sale and Fair Value through Income Statement [FYIS)
financial insruments. In addttion, as explained fully in the related notes, assels and fiabilities that are hedged (in a
fair value hedging relationship} and otheswise carried at cost are carried at fair value lo the extent of the risk being
hedged.

¢} Functional and preseniation surrency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals {SAR), which is the Bank's
functienal currency. Except as indicated, financial information presented in SAR has been rounded off to the
nearast thousands unless otherwise indicated.

g} Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consofidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. It atso
requires management to exerdse its judgment in the precess of applying the Bank's accounting policies. Such
judgments, eskmates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and gther
factors, including eblaining professional advice and expectations of future events that are believed lo te
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BANGUE SAUD! FRANSI
NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 3§, 2013 and 2012
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reasonable under the circumstances. Significant areas where management has used esfimates, assumptions or
exercised judgments are as follows:

{i} Impaimment for credit [psses on |oans & advances

The Bank reviews ils loan portfolic o assess specific and collective impairment on a quarterly basts. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there is
any observable data indicating that there is a measurabde decreass in the estmaled future cash fiows. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
Borrowers in & group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for loans with credit sisk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to Lhose in the portfolio when estimating its cash
fows. The mathodology and assumplions used for estimating both the amount and the timing of future cash fows
are reviewed regulary to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual lcss experience,

{ii} Fair value of unguoted financial instruments

The fair values of fimancial instruments that are not quoted in acfive markets are determined by using valuation
technigues. Where valuation technigues (for example, models] are used to defermine fair values, they are
validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area $hat created them. Al models
are certified befere they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect acfual data and
comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable market data, however areas such
as credit risk (both own and counter party), volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates.
The judgments include considerations of liguidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated denvatives
and discount rates, prepayment rates and defaull rate assumplions for assel backed securities. Changes in.
assumptions about these faciors could affect reparted fair values of financial instruments,

(i} Impairment of available for sale equity and debt instruments investments

The Bank exercises judgment ko cansider impairment on the available-for-sale equity investments. This indudes
delermination of a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. In assessing whether it is
significant, the decline in fair value is evaluated against the original cost of the asset at initial recognifion. In
assessing whether it is profonged, the decline is evaluated against the period in which the fair value of the asset
has been below its original cost at inital recognifion. In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt
instruments is impaired, the Group considers the following factors such as market's assessment of creditworthiness
as reflected in the bond yields, rating agencies’ assessmen!s of creditworthiness, country's abilily ko access the
capital markets for new debt issuance and probability of debt being restruciured, resuliing in hofders suffering
losses through woluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

In making this judgement, the Bank evaluates among other factors, the normal wolatifity in share/debt price,
deterincation in the financial health of the investse, industry and sector performance, changes in technelogy, and
cperationa! and financing cash flows.

{iv) Classification of held o maturify investments

The Bank follows the quidance or requirement of Intemational Accounting Standard {IAS) 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recegnifion and Measuremenl” on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held to maturity. In making this judgment, e Bank evaluates its
infention and ability to hold such investments to maturify,

v) Determination of control over investaes

The control indicators sel out in nole 3 (b} are subject & management's judgements that can have a significant
effect in the case of the Group's inferests in investments fends,

Investment funds

The group acts as Fund Manager fo a nurnber of investment funds. Determining whether the group contrals such
an investment fund usually focuses on the assessment of the aggregate economic interests of the Group in the
Fund {comprising any camied interests and expected management fees} and the investors' righls to remove the
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BANQUE SAUDI FRANSI
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Fung Managsr. As a result the Group has concluded that it acts as an agent for the investors in all cases, and
therefure has not consolidated these funds.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant acoounting policies adep'ed in the preparation of these consclidated finansial statements are set
out betow. Except for the changes in accounting pelices as delaiied in note 3(a) below, the accounting policies
adopted in the prepesation of thasz consolidated financial statements are consistent with those used in the
[ pIEVious year.

a} Change in accounting policies

The significant aceounting policies adepled in the preparation of these consclidated financial statements are sat
cul below. Excepl for the changes in aceounting policies as detailed in note 3 {a) & (b) below, the accountng
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those used in the
previols year.

a) New standards

IFRS 10 Consalidated financial statements: IFRS 10 replaces the requirements previcusly contained in [AS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SI1C-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. The
Standard introduces a single consalidation model for all entifies based on control; irrespective of the nature of
te investee (i.e. whether an entity is controlled through voling rights of investors or throwgh other contractual
arrangements as is cammon in ‘'special purpose enlitiss’).

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements: [FRS 11 replaces 145 31 interests in Joint Yentures. Reguires a party [o a joint
arrangement fn determine the type of joint amangement in which it is involved by assessing its rights and
obligations and then account for those rights and obligations in accerdance with that type of joinl arrangement.

I IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Enfities: Reguires the extensive disclosure of informalion that enables
users of financial statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, inferests in other entities and
I the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial perdormance and cash flows.

FRS 13 Fair value measurements: Replaces the guidance on fair value measurement in existing fFR3
accounting literature with a single slandard. The IFRS defines fair value, provides guidance on how to

1 determine fair value and requires disclosures about fair valus measurements. Hewever, IFRS 13 does not
change the requirements regarding which items should be measured or disclosed at fair vahie.

[ b) Amendments to exsting standard

Amendments to IAS 1 Presenfafion of financiat statements: amends |1AS 1 to revise the way other
comprehensive income is presented.

Amendments te IFRS 7 Financial Insluments: Disclosure; Amends the disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 to
require information about all recognised finandial instruments that are sei off in accordance with paragraph 42
of IAS 32 and also require disclosure of information about recognised financial instruments subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements and agreements even if they are not set off under IAS 32,

145 19 Employee Benefits — Amendments: The amendments to &S 19 remove the option o defer the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses, i.e., the corridor mechanism. All changes in the value of defined
benefit plans will be recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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BANQUE SAUDI FRANSI
NCTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCHAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

|AS 27 Separate Financial Statements {2011): now only deals with the requirements for separate financial
staternends, which have been caried over largely unamended from 145 27 Consclidated and Separate
Financial Statements. Requirements for consolidated financial statements are now contained in IFRS 10
Consolidated Financigf Statements,

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Join! Ventures (2011} The majority of these revisions result from the
incorporation of Joint ventures into [AS 28 (2011) and the fundamentd approach to accounting for equity
accounted investments has not changed.

The IASE has published Annual Improvements lo IFRSs: 2009-2011 cycles of improvemsnts thal contain
amendments to the following standards with consequential amandments to other standards:

IFRS 1 - First ime adoption of FRS. Repeated application of IFRS 1 and borrowing cosl
exemption;

|AS 1 — Presenfation of finandal statements: Comparalive information beyond minimum
requirements and presentation of the opening statement of financial position and related notes;

IAS 16 — Property, plant and equipment; Classification of senvicing equipment;
|43 32 — Financial instruments presentation; Income tax consequences of distributisns

IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting: Segment assets and Fiabilities.

b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of e Bank and its subsidiaries (the
Group}i.e. Saudi Fransi Capital, Saudi Fransi Insurance Agency, Saudi Fransi Financing and Leasing, Sakan real
estate financing, Sofinco Saudi Fransi and BSF Sukuk Limited. The fnancial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as that of the Bark, using consistent accounting policies. Redassifications
have been made wherever necessary to the financial statements of the subsidiaries lo bring them in line with the
Bank's consolidated financial siatements.

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Bank. The Group conbrofs an investee when it is exposed lo, or has
rights to, variable refurns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retumns through its
power over the investes. The financial statements of subsidiares are included in the consolidated financial
staternents irom the date that conbrol commences undil the date that confrol ceases.

Confrol is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has righis, o variable returns from its involvement with the
investes and has the ability {o affect those returns through its power over the investes.

Specifically, the Group ¢onfrols an investee if and only if the Group has;

-Power over the inveslee {ie. existing rights that give it the cument ability to direct the refevant activities of the
investee|

-Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investes, and

-The abélity o use its power over the investes to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majorily of the voting or similar rights of an investes, the Group considers all
refevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

-The contractual arrangement with the other vofe holders of the investes

-Rights arising from other contractual arangements :

-The Group's voting rights and potential voting righls

The Group re-assesses whether or ot #t controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group

9



BANQUE SAUDI FRANSI
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when e Group loses control of the subsidiary. The resulls of
subsidiaries acquired ar disposed of during the year, if any, are included in the conselidated statemenl of income
fiom the effective date of the acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Balances between the Bank and its subsidiaries including any income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing these consofidated fnancial statements. Unrealised losses are eiminated
in the same way as unrealisad gains, but anly to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

{ij List of significant subsidiaries

The table befow provides details of the significant subsidiaries of the group

Mame of the subsidiary Principal place Ownership inlerest

of business 23 2nz
Saudi Fransi Capital K5A 100% 100%
Saudi Fransi Insurance Agency K.BA 100% 100%
Saudi Franst Financing and Leasing K.5.A 100% 100%
Sofinco Saudi Fransi K.S5.A 100% 50%
Sakan real estate financing K.SA 100% 100%

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Bank also owns BSF Sukuk Limited having 100% share in equity, incomorated
in the Cayman |slands. The acquisition of Sofince Saudi Fransi has no material impact on the Group financial
statements.

{ii} Significant restriction

The group does nol have significant restictions on its ability t0 access o use ils assets and settle iks labilities
other than fhose resulting from the supervisory frameworks within which banking subsidiaries operale.

¢} Investment in associates

Investments in associales are initiaky recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. An associate is an entity in which the Bank holds 20% o 50% of the voling power and over which it
has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

d} Settlement and trade date accounting

All requtar purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position on the settlement dale i.e. the date on which the asset is acquired from or defivered to the
counter parly. The Bank accounts for any change in fair value which are recognized from the trade dale. Regular
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of finandial assets that require delivery of assels within the time frame
generally established by regulation or follow convention in the market place,

All other financial assels and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date at which the Bank becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
el Derivatives financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments including forward forsign exchange contracts, commissicn rate Rutures, forward
rate agreements, currency and commission rafe swaps, and cumency and commission rate options (both written
and purchased) are measured at fair vafue. All derivatives are caried al their fair value as assets where the fair
value is posilive and as liabilities where the fair value is negalive. Fair values are obtained by reference to guoted
market prices, discounted cash flow models and pricing models, as appropriate,

The treatment of changes in their fair value depends on their classification into the following categories:
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it Derivatives held for trading

Any changes in the fair valus of denvatives thal are held for trading purposes are taken directly to the consolidated
statement of income and are disclosed in trading income. Derivaives held for trading also include those
derivatives which do not qualify for hedge accounting {including embedded derivatives).

i) Embedded derivatives

Derivaiives embedded in other financial instruments are reated as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if their economic charactenistics and nisks are not closely related to those of the host conltracl, and the host
contract is not itself held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. The embedded desivadves
separated from the host are carried at fair value in the trading portfolio with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidaled staterment of income.

iii} Hedge accounting

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified into two categories: (a) fair value hedges which hedge
the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liahility, {or assets or liabilities in case of
gortfolio hedging), or an unrecognised firm commitment er an identified portion of such an asset, liabiity or firm
commitmenl, that is attibutable fo a particular sk and could affect the reported net gain or loss; and {b) cash flow
hedges which hedge exposure o variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particutar risk associated
with a recognized asset or liability, or to a highly probable forecasted transaction that will affect the reporfed nat
gain or |oss.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge should be expected to be highly effective i.e. the changes in
fair value ar cash flows of the hedging instrumenl should effectively offset comesponding changes in the hedged
item, and should be reliably measurable. At inception of the hedge, the risk management cbjective and strategy is
documented including the identificaiion of fhe hedging instrument, the related hedged ftem, the nature of sisk being
hedged. and how the Bank will assess the effactiveness of the hedging relationship. Subsequently, the hedge is
required fo be assessed and determined to be an effeclive hedge on an ongoing basis,

Fair value hedges

In relation to fair value hedges, which meet the eriteria for hedge accounting, any gain or loss from re-measuring
the hedging instruments to fair value is recognized immediately in the consolidated stalement of income. The
related portion of the hedged item is adjusted against the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognized in
the consolidated statement of income. For hedged items measured at amortised cost, where the fair value hedge
of a commission bearing financial instrument ceases fo meei the criteria for hedge accounting or is sold, exercised
or leminated, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is
amortised over the remaining term of the original hedge using the effective commission rate method. If the hedged
item is derecognised, the unamorfised far value adjustmenl is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of income.

Cash flow hedges

In refalion to cash flow hedges which meet the criterta for hiedge accounting, the portien of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument that is determined lo be an effective hedge is recognized directly in other comprehensive
income and the ineffective portien, i any, is recognized in the consolidaled statement of income. For cash flow
hedges affecting future transactions, the gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive income, are
transferred to the consclidated statement ofincome in the same period in which the hedged transaction affscts the
consolidated stalement of income. Where the hedged forecasted ransaction results in the recognition of a non
financial asset or a non financial liability, then at the ime that the asset or [fability is recognized, the associated
gains or losses that had previously been recognized in other comprehensive income are inguded in the initial
measurement of the aoquisifion cost or other carrying amount of the assel or liabiity. Hedge accounting is
discontinued when the hedging instument is expired or sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting, or the forecasl ransaction is no longer expected lo occur or #he Bank revokes (he designation.
At that paint of time, any cumufative gain or loss on the cash flow hedging instrument that was recognised in other
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comprenensive ncome s retained in equity untl the forecasted transaction occurs. Where the hedged forecasted
fansaction is no longer expected to ocour, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income’ is kansferred to the consclidated statement of income for the year.,

ft Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are franslated into Saudi Arabian Riyals at exchange rates prevaiing at
transaction dates. Monetary asssts and liabilities denominated in foreign cusrencies al the year end are translated
into Saudi Arabfan Riyals al the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. The foreign currency gain or loss
on manatary items is the difference betwesn amoriised cost in the functional cumrency al the beginning of the year
adjusted for effective commission fate and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in foreign currency
franslaied at the exchanges rafe at he end of the year.

Foreign exchange gains or losses on transfafion of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consdlidated statement of income, except for differences arising on the
retranslation of available for sale equity instruments and effective cash flow hedges in foreign curencies. Realized
and unrealized paing or losses on exchange are credited or charged to exchange income or when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges. Translation
gains or losses on non-monefary items caried at fair value are induded as part of the fair valug adjustment either
in the consolidated statement of income or in other compeehensive income depending on the underlying financial
asset.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilifies denominated in foerefgn currencies measured at fair value are franslated using
the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.

g) Offsetting financial instruments

Finangial assets and liabilifes are offset and reported net in the consclidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceabls right lo set off the recognized amounts, or when the Bank intends to settle on a nel
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

income and expenses are not offset in the consolidated statement of income unless required or permitied by any
accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounling policies of the Bank.

h) Revenuve ! expense recognition
Special commission income and expense

Special commission income and expense for all special commission bearing financial insbruments, except for
those classified as held for frading or designated as at fair value trough income statement, {FYIS) are recognized
in ihe consolidated slatement of income using the effective commission rate basis, The effecive commission rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated fulure cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability {or, where appropriate, a shaorer perod) to the carrying amount of the financial assel or
fiability, When calculating the effective commission rate, the Bank esfimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrumend but not future credit losses.

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates of
payments or receipis. The adjusted camying amount is calculated based on the original effecive commission rate
and the change in carrying amount is recorded as special commission income or expense.”

If the recorded value of a financial asset or a greup of similar financial assefs has been reduced due to an
impainment loss, special commission income continues to be recognised using the original effective yield applied
{o the new carrying amounl.

The calculation of the effective yield lakes inte account all contractual terms of the financial instruments
{prepayment, options elc.} and includes all fees and points paid or received fransaction costs, and discounts or
premiums that are an integral part of the effective spectal commission rate. Transaciion costs are incremental
costs that are directly attibutable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of financial asset or liahility.
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Exchange income [ loss

Exchange income f loss is recognised when eared { incurred.
Fees and commission income

Fees and commissions are fecognized when the service has been provided. Loan commitment fees for loans that
are likely bo be drawn down are deferred and, together with the related direct costs. are recognized as an
adjustment to lhe effecive yield on the loan. Portfolio and other management advisory and ssrvice fees are
iecognized brased on the applicable service contracls, ustally on a Eme-proporiionale basis. Fees received on
asset management, wealth management, financial planning, custedy services and other similar services that are
provided over an extended period of time, are recognized over the period when the service is being provided.
When a loan commitment is not expectsd to result in the draw-down of a Ioan, loan commitmenl fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment peried. Other {ees and commission expanse, which relate
mainly to transaction and service fees are sxpensed as the services are raceived.

Uividend ingcome
Dividend income is recognised when e righl to receive the income is established.

Trading income

Resulls arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair values, related special
commission income or expense inguding dividends for financial assets and financial liabiliies held for frading and
foreign exchange differences. This includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging transactions.

Income f {loss) from FYI3 financial instruments

Net income from FWIS financial instruments relates fo financial assets and fiabilities designaled as FVIS and
include alf realised and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

i} Sale and repurchase agreements

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment o repurchase al a specified future date {repos), continue to be
recognized in the consdlidated statement of finandal position and are measured in accordance with related
accounting policies for investments held as FVES (held for trading), available for sale, held to maturity and other
investments held at amortized cost The counter-parly iiability for amounts received under these agreements is
included in “Due to banks and other financial institutions™ or “Customers’ deposits™, as appropriate. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is freated as special commission expense and is accrued over the life of the
repo agreement, on an effective yiel basis,

Assels purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a spedified future date {reverse repos), are not
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial pesition, as the Bank does not obtain contrel over the assets.
Amounts paid under these agreements are inguded in “Cash and balances with SAMA®, “Due from banks and
other financial institutions” or *Loans and advances”, as appropriste. The difference bebween purchase and resale
price is lreated as special commission income and is accrued over the life of the reverse repo agreement, on an
effective yield basis.

Il investments

Al investiments securities are initialy recognized at fair value and with the exception of FYIS investments which
also include acquisiion charges associated with the investment, Premiums are amortized and discounts are
accreted using the effective yield basis and are taken to special commission income. Amorized cost is calculated
by taking info account any discount or premium on acquisition,

For securities thal are traded in organized financial markets, fair valus is determined by reference to exchange
guoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date without deduction for ransaction costs.
Fair value of managed assets and investments in mutual funds are determined by reference to dedared net asset
values.
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For securities whers there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of the fair value is determined by
raference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same, or is based on the
enpected cash flows or the underiying net asset base of the secunily. Where the fair values cannot be derived from
aclive markets, they are defermined using a variety of valuation jechniqures that indude the use of models. The
input to #nese models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing far values.

Following inital recognition, subsequent transfers between the various categories of investments are not erdinarily
permissible. The subsequend period end reporting values for the various categeries of investments are defermined
as follows:

i) Held as fair value through income statement [FYIS)

Investments held as FVIS are classified as sither investment held for trading or those designated as fair valve
through income statement on initial recognition. Investments cfassified as trading are acquired principally for the
purpose of sefling or repurchasing in short term or if designated as such by the management in accordance with
criteria laid down in IAS 3%, After initial recognifion, invesiments al FVIS are measured at fair value and any
change in the fair valug is recogn'sed in the consolidated statement of income for the year in which it ocours.
Transaction costs, if any, are nef added o the fair value measurement at initial recognition of FVIS investmeants.
Special commission income, dividend income and gain or loss incurred on financial assets held as FVIS are
reffected as frading income or expense in the consolidated stafemeni of income.

il Available for sale

Awailable for sale investments are those equity and debt securities that are intended to be held for an unspecified
period of fime, which may be sold in response to needs for fiquidity or changes in commission rates, exchange rates
or equity prices. AFS are non-derivative investments that are designated as AFS or not dassified as ancther
cateqory of financial assefs.

Investments which are classified as “available for sale” are subsequently measured at fair value, Unrealised gain
or ioss arising from a change in an investment's {air value is recognised in other comprehensive income. On de-
recognition, any cumulative gain or loss previously recegnized in ofher comprehensive income is included in the
consolidated statement of incume.

Special commission income is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an effective yield basis.
Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the Bank becomes entitled to the
dividend. Foreign exchange gains or loss on available for sale debt security investments are recognised in the
consolidated stalement of income.

A security held as available for sale may be reclassified to *Other investments held at amorfised cost® if it
otherwise would have met the definition of “*Other investmenls held at amartized cost” and if the Bank has the
intention and ability to held that financial asset for the foresesable future or until maturity.

i} Held to maturity

Investments which have fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity thal the Bank has the posilive intention
and abiiity to hold up fo the maturity, other than those classified as “Cther investments held at amoriised cost”, are
classified as ‘held to maturity. Held fo malurity investments are initialiy recognised at fair value including direct
and incremental transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cosl, less provision for impairment in
their value. Amartized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisibion using an
effectiive yield basis. Any gain or loss on such investments is recognized in the consolidated statement of income
when the investmenlis de-recognized or impaired.

Investments cfassified as held to maturity cannot ordinarily be sold or reclassified without impacting the Bank's
ability to use this classification and cannot be designated as a hedged item with respec! to spedial commission
rate or prepayment risk, reflecting the longes term nature of fhese investments.
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iv} Other investments held at amertized cost

invastments with fixed or defeminable payments that are not quoted in an active market are dassified as ‘othar
investments held at amorfized cost'. Other investments held at amorized cost, where the fair value has not been
hedged are stated at amortized cost using the effective vield basis, less provision for impairment. Any gain or loss
[ is recognized in the consofidated statement of income when the investmant is derecognized or impaired,

k} Loans and advances

Leans and advances are nen<derivative financial assels originated or acquired by the Bank with fixed or
determinable payments. Leans angd advances are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers. They are
derecognized when either bomrower repays their obfigations, or the inans are sold or written off, or substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferrad.

All loans and advances are initially measured at fair value, including acguisition charges associated with the loans
and advancas except forioans held as FVIS.

Following the initial recognifion subsequent transfers between the various cakegories of loans and advances is not
ordinarily permissible. The subsequent perind end reparling values for varigus classes of loans and advances are
determined on the basis as sef oulin the following paragraphs:

fi} Awvailatle for sale

Loans and advances which are not part of a hedging relationship and are available for sale, are subsequently
measured at fair value and gains or losses arising from chianges in fair value are recognized directly in “ofher
reserves’ under shareholders’ squity until the foans or advances are de-recognized or impaired, at which time the
curnulative gain or loss previously recognized in other reserves is included in the consolidated statement of
income for the year.

(i} Loans and advances held at amortized cost

Loans and advances originafed or acquired by the Bank that are nof quoled in an active market and for which the
fair value has not b2en hedged, are sfated at amortised cost

For loans and advances which are hedged, the related portion of the hedged fair value is adjusted against the
carrying amount.

[ For presentation purposes, impairment charge for credit |osses is deducled from loans and advances.
I} Due from banks and other finzneial institutions

Due from banks and other financial institutions are financtal assets which include money market placements with
fixed or determinable paymenis and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. Mongy market
placements are not enlered into with the intenlion of immediate or shert-term resale. They are initially measured al
cost, being the fair vafue of the considerafion given.

Foflowing the initial recognition, these are slated at costless any amount written off and provisions for impairment,
if any.

m} Impairment of financial assets

A financial assel is classified as impaired when there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
o more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that such a loss event(s} has an impact on
the estimated fulure cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assels thal can be reliably estimated.

An assessment is made at each reporting date lo determine whether there /s an objective evidencs that a financial
assel or group of finansial assels may be impaired. if such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of
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that asset is determined and any impairmant loss, based on the present valus of future anticipated cash fows is
recogrized for changes iniis carrying amounts as follows:

The Bank considers evidence of impzirment far loans and advances and held to mzturity investments at both a
specific asset and collective level

i} lmpairment of available for sale financial assets

In the case of debl instruments clessified as available for safe, the Bank assesses individually whether thare is an
objective evidence of impairment based on the same criteria 25 finzncial assels camied at amortized cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumufative loss measured as the difference belween the amortized cost
and the cumenl fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the consolidated
statement of income,

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debl insfrument increases and the increase can be objectively related
to credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recegnized in the consolidated stalement of income, the
impairment [oss is reversed through the consolidated statement of income.

For equily investments heald as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below its cost
represents objective evidence of impairment. The impairment foss cannot be reversed through consolidated
stalement of income as long as the asset continues to be recognised fe. any increase in fair value after
impairment has been recorded can only be recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, any
curmtlative gain or foss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is included in the consolidated
staterment of income for the year.

iil Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assels carried at amortized cost, the carrying amount of the asset is adjusled either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the adjustment is included in the consoiidated
statement of income.

A logan is classified as impaired when, in management's opinion, there has been deterioration in credit quality fo
the extent that there is no longer reasonable assurance of imely colfection of the full amount of principal and
special commission income,

Impairment charge for credil losses is based upan the management's judgment of the adequacy of the provisiens.
Such assessment [akes into account the composifon and volume of the loans and advances, the general
economic conditions and the callectabiity of the outstanding loans and advances. Considerable judgment by
management is required in the estimaton of the amount and Bming of future cash flows when delermining the
required level of provisions. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors and
actual res\ts may differ resulting in future changes in such provisions.

Spedific provisions are evaluated individually for all differenl types of loans and advances, whereas additional
provisions are evaluated based on collective impairment of loans and advances, and are created for credit losses
where there is an objeclive evidence that Ihe unidentified potential losses are present at the reporting date. The
amount of the specific provision is the difference between the camying amount and the estimafed recoverable
amount. The collective provision is based upon deterioration in the internal grading or external credit ratings
allocated to the bomower or group of burrowers, the current ecenomic condition in which the borrowers operate
and the expenience and historical defautt pattems that are embedded in the components of the credii portiolio.
These internal grading take ito consideration factors such as any deterioration in country risk, industry, as well as
identified structural weaknesses or detericralion in cash ffows,

Financial assets are written off enly in circumstances where effectively all possible means of recovery have been
exhausted, and the amount of the loss has been determined. Once a financial asset has been writien down o its
estimated recoverable amount, special commission income is thereafter recognized based on the rale of specfal
commission that was used to discount the fubure cash flows for the purpose of measuring the recoverable amount.
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When a fnancial asset is unccllsctible, it is written off against the related provision for impaiment through
alowance for impairment account,

If, in a subsequant period. the amount of the impairment luss decreases and the decrease can be related
objestively to an event occurring after fhe impaiment was recognized (such as an improvement in the deblors
credit rating), the previously recognized impairment foss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amaunt of the reversal is recognized in the consclidated statement of income in impairment charge for credit
losses.

Loans whose terms have been renegoatiated are no longer considered to be past dus but are treated as new loans.
Restrucliering policies and practices are basad on indicators or criteria which, indicate that payment will mast likely
continue. The loans continue to be subject ko an individual or collective impairment assessment.

n] Other real estate

The Bank, in the ordinary course of business, acquires certain real estate against settlement of due koans and
advances. Such real estate is consikiered as assets held for sale and is initially stated al the lower of net realizabls
value of due loans and advances and the current fair valve of the related properfies, less any costs to sell. No
depreciation is charged on such rezl estafe.

Subsequent to the initial recognilion, such real estate are revatued on a periodic basis and unrealized losses on
revaluafion, and losses ar gains on disposal, are charged or credited fo operating income or expense.

o) Property and equipment
Propery and equipment are stated af cosl and presented net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Freehold land is not depreciated. The cost of other property and equipment is depreciated and amortized using the
straighl line method aver the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 33 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease pericd or 10 years, whichever is shorter
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 4 ip1Q years

The assefs’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporiing date.

Gains and losses on disposals are detemmined by comparing proceeds with camying amount. These are included
in consolidated stalement of income.

p} Lliabilities

Al money market deposils, placements, customers’ deposits and lerm loans are inifially recognized al cost, being
the fair valve of the consideration received less transaction costs,

Subsequently &l commission bearing financial liabdlifies, where fair values have been hedged, are measured at
amortized cost Amortized cost is caleulafed by taking info account any discount or premium, Premiums are
amortized and discounts are accreted en an effectve yield basis to maturity and laken to special commission
iNCOME O &Xpense,

Financial liabilities for which there is an associated fair value hedge relationship are adjusted for fair value to the
extenl of the risk being hedged, and the resultant gain or [0ss is recogrized in the consolidated slalement of
income. For commission bearing financial liabilities caried at amortized cost, any gain or loss is recognized in the
consdlidated stalement of income when derecognized or impaired,

In the crdinary course of business, the Bank gives financial guarantees, consisting of letter of credit, guaraniees

and acceptances. Financial guarantses are inilially recognised in the consolidated financial slatemants at fair
value in other fabilities, being the value of the premium received. Subsequent to the inifial recognition, the Bank's
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lighility under each guarantes is measured at the higher of the amorlized premium and the best estimate of
expenditure required to selile any financial ebligations ansing as a result of gquaraniees,

Fee recaived is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straighl Ing basis over the dife of the
guarantes,

q) Provisions

Prowisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation arising from past evenls, it
is more likely than nst that an outflow of resources will be required to seftle the obligation and the costs to settle
the obligation can be reliably measured or estimated.

1 Accounting for leases
i) Where the Bank is the lesses

Leases entered into by the Bank are all operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of income on a shraight line basis over the pericd of the lease. When an operating
lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which fermination takes place.

i} Where the Bank is the lessor

When assets are sotd under a finance leass indluding assets under Islamic lease amangement, the present value
of the lease payments is recognized as a receivable and is disclosed under loans and advances. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized as uneamed finance income.
Lease income is recognized over the term of the lease using the net investment methed, which reflects a constant
pericdic rake of return.

s} Cash and cash equivalents

Far the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those
amounts included in cash, balances with SAMA excluding stafutery deposit, and due from banks and other
financial institutions maturing within ninety days from the date of acquisifion.

t} De-recognition of financial instruments

A financial assel or a part of financal assets, or a part of group of stmifar financial assels is derecognized when
the contractua rights ko the cash flows from the financial asset expires and if the Bank has transferred
substanfally all the rsks and rewards of ownership. Whers the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, the financial asset is derecognised only if the Bank has not
retained confrol of the financial asset. The Bank recognises separately as assets o fiabifities any rights and
obligations created or retained in the process. A financial lisbility or a pari of a financial liability can only be
derecognised when it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligafion specified in the confract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

u) Zakat and income tax

Under Saudi Arabian Zakal and Income tax laws, zakat and income tax are the liabilities of Saudi and foreign
sharehctders, respectively. Zakat is computed on the Saudi shareholders’ share of equity and for net income using
the basis defined under the zakal regulations. Income fax is compuled on the foreign shareholders' share of net
incoeme for the year,

Zakal and income tax are nol charged to the consolidated statement of income as they are deducled from the
dividends paid to fhe shareholders. If no dividend is declared then zakat is deducted from the retained eamings
ang tax is deducted from the retained eamings in propertion to foreign shareholding and remaining lax is daimed
from the forsign sharehalders.
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v} Investment management, brokerage and corporate finance services

The Bank offers investment management, brokerage and corporate finance sendces fo its customers, through its
subsidgiaries, which include managemsnt of certain investmend funds in consultation with professional investment
advisors and brokerage services. The Bank's share of these funds is included in the available for sale investmants
and fees eamed are disclosed under relaled party transactions.

Assets hefd in trust or in a fiduciary capacity ars not reated as assels of the subsidiary and accordingly are not
included in the consclidated financial statements.

w} Non-commission based banking products

In addition to the conventional banking, the Bank ofiers its customers certain non-commission based banking
products, which are approved by its Sharizh Board, as follows;

High level definitions of non-commission based banking products

{il Murabaha is an agreement whereby the Bank sells to a customer a commedity or an asset, which the Bank
fas purchased and acquired based on a promise received from the customer o buy. The selling price comprises
the cost plus an agreed profit margin.

(i) Mudarabah is an agreement between the Bank and a customer whereby the Bank invests in a specific
fransaction. The Bank is called ‘rabb-ul-mal® while the management and work is exclusive responsibiiity of the
custorner who is called “mudarib®. The profit is shared as per the terms of the agreement but the loss is borme by
the Bank.

(i} ljarah is a an agreement wheraby the Bank, acting as a lessor, purchases or constucis an asset for lease
according to the customer request {lessee), based on his promise o lease the assel for an agreed rent and
specific penod that could end by fransfering the ownership of the feased asset to the lessee.

{iv] Musharaka is an agreement betwesen the Bank and a cusfomer fo conlribute to a cerfain investment
enterprise or the ownership of a certain property ending up with the acquisifon by the customer of the full
ownership. The profit orioss is shared as per the 'emms of the agreement,

(v} Tawaraq is a form of Murabaha transactions where the Bank purchases a commadity and sells it to the
cugtomer. The customer sells the underying commodity at spot and uses the proceeds for his financing
requirements.

Al Islamic banking products are accounted for in accordance with IFRS and are in conformity with the accounting
policies described in these consdlidated financial slatements.

¥) Shonr term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services
are provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus of profit sharing plans if
the Greup has a preseni legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the ciligation can be esimated refiably.
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4 GCash and balances with SAMA

SAR' 000 2013 212
Cash on hand 834328 | 858238
Statutory deposit : 7,788,847 8,317,469
Currenl accouent 31,6983 7503
Money market placemants 8,434,915 £,040 4
i Total 18,139,603 15,233 244

In accordance with the Banking Control Law and regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian Menetary Agency (SAMA),
the Bank is required to maintain stafulory deposit with the SAMA at stipulated percentages of its demand, saving,
time and other deposits, calculated at the end of each month. The statutory deposit with SAMA is not available to
finance the Bank's day-to-day operations and therefore is not part of cash and cash equivalenis.

5 Due from banks and other financlal institutions

I
SAR" 000 2013 2012
Current atgounts | 1278217 B85, 77
Money market placements 268,674 4 546 606
Total 1,545,091 5435376

Balances due from banks and other financial insttutions are investment grade. Investment grade includes due
from banks and other financial instilufions having credif exposure squivalent to Standard and Poor's rating of AAA
tc BBB.
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B

Investments, net

a} These comprise the following:

2013 2m2

SAR’ 000 Oomestic | International © Total Domestic In‘ernafional Total

i] Held as FVIS

Fixed rate securities 155,158 164,354 319,542 21438 226,588 248,026
| Floating rate securities 1,530 . 1,530 53,759 - 53,750

Equities 5,130 - 2130 | §.956 - 8,908

Held as FVIS 161,818 164,154 326172 84,193 226,588 310,751

i) Available for sale (AFS)

Fixed rale securities 53,624 491,011 544 615 530,617 614,725 1,145,342

Floating rate sacurities 2,617,852 131,489 2,749,344 1,545,580 90,224 1,635,814

Equities 460,434 56,833 547,267 585,016 95,278 693,204

Olhey 4,025,936 - 4,025,936 3263241 - 3,263, M1
i Available for sale 7,187,546 | 679,312 7,867,179 5,934,434 803,227 8,737 851

i) Held to maturity

Fixed rale securities 3,639 - 1639 ¥ 587 - 708,587

Floating rats securities 10,000 - 10,000 - - -

Held to maturity 11639 - 13,639 TR 587 - 7R 587
! iy]) Other investments held

at amertized cosl, net

Fixed rate securities 26,006,883 - | 26,006,883 ' 19654970 - | 19,654,570

Floating rate notes 25,000 266,250 251,230 &53,000 353 750 448 750

Cther investments held at

amortized cest, gross 28,091,883 266,250 | 26,358,133 | 19.739.970 363,750 | 20103720

Allswance for impairment (266,250) (266,250) - [363,750) (353, 7500

Other investments held at

amortized cost, nef 26,091,583 - | 26,091,883 18,7309/ - | 19,739,97¢

Investments, net 33,455,186 843,657 | 34,298,873 | 26,468,184 1029 815 | 27 497 999
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b} The analysis of the composition of investments is as follows:

2013 iy

! BAR 00D Quoted Unguoted Total Cuated Urquoted Tatal
. Fixed rate securities T41,438 | 26133231 | 26,874,669 | 1,330,372 . 20477553 | 21757825
Floating rate securities ! notas 716,597 | 2395524 | 314211 287022 1851301 | 2138323
Equities 27 A7 225,22 552,397 432,966 269,324 702,29
Cther - 4025936 1 4025936 - 3263211 | 3263
1,785,210 | 32,779,913 | 34,565,123 | 2050360 | 25811380 [ 77,861,740
Allowance for impaiem ent - {266,250) (268,250 - {363,750 (353,750
Investments, nat 1,785,210 | 32,513,663 | 34,208,873 | 2,050,360 | 25447639 | 27497 990

other investments held at amortized costs, are as follows:

¢} The analysis of unrealized gains and losses and the fair values of held to maturity investments and

2013 2mz2
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Camying |unreadiized (unrealized Fair Carrying | unrealized | unrealized Fair
SAR' 00D valie gains losses Value value gaing losses Value
i} Held to maturity
i Fixed rate securities 3638 187 - 3,826 709557 12,192 - FN.77
Floating rate securities 10,000 - (&7) 9,913
Total 13,639 187 (87} 13,739 709587 12,192 - T
ii) Other investments
held at amortized cost
Fixed rate secuntes | 26,006,883 21,961 (14,759)) 26,014,085 | 19,654,970 24 642 (3,758){ 19,675,854
Fioating rate notes 354,250 - -| 351,250 448,750 - -l 448,70
Allowance for
impairment (266,254 - - | (266,250) (363,750 - -| (383,750}
Total 26,091,583 21,961 (14,759)) 26,099,085 | 19,730,870 24,842 {3,758), 19,760,854

The fair value of the fixed rale securites disclosed above is considered as level 2 for fair valee hierarchy

disclasure purpose,

d} The analysis of investments by counterparty is as follows:

SAR" 300 2013 2012

Governmenl and quasi government ' 26,809,053 21028831
Corporate 5999,570 4,332,682
Banks and other financial insliulions 1,404,304 2,061,084
Cthers §5,850 75,422
Total 34,298,873 27,497 955
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e} Credit risk exposure on investmentds

SAR' 000

2H2 212
Saudi governmend bonds 26,933,211 20,863,854
Investment grade 1,764,064 2374 474
Mon investment grade
Unrated 6,401,558 4,259 671
Total 34208873 | 2749799

Saudi govemment bonds comprise Saudi government devefupmenl bonds and treasury bills, Investment grade
includes investments having credit exposure equivalent to Standard and Poor's rating of A8A to 8BB. Unrated
investments indude local equities, foreign equities and Mudarabah SAR 4,026 million (2012: SAR 3,263 million]).

f) Movement of allowance forimpairment of investments and other assets:

SAR’ 000 2013 2012
Balance ai the beginning of the year 465,750 477,000
Provided during the year 50,944

Recoveries during the year {46,554} (11,2501 |
Written off during the year (59,700}

Balance at the end of the year 410,440 465,750

Investments held as FVIS represent investments held for trading and include |slamic securities of SAR 40 milion

(2012 SAR TV million).

Available for sale investments include Islamic securibies (Sukuk) of SAR 1,920 million (2012: SAR 1,574 milicn).

Unguoted investments indude Saudi Government Bonds and treasury bills of SAR 26,133 million (2012 SAR 20,864

million].

Saudi Istithmar Mufual Fund SAR 71 million {2012 SAR 66 million) and unquoted equity shares of SAR 225 million
(2012; SAR 203 million) which are carried at cost as their fair value cannot be reliably measured, are also included

under equities availabie for sale,
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¥ Loans and advances, net

a) Loans and advances are classified as follows:

Other loans and adyances held at amortised cost

2013
i Owerdrafi &
‘ Commercial Credd Cards | Consumer °  Others Total
SAR' 000 loans Loans
]
Performing kans and advances - gross ‘ 93,833,372 585,291 9,810,808 | 7,775,266 ' 112007337
Non perferming koans and advances, net 1,164,505 54,660 297 476 7i3 1,517,374
Totallozns and advances _ 4,597,877 643,051 10,108,284 | 7,775.99% | 413,525 211
Allowance far impairmeni {1,748,082) [54,983) {414,508} {733 | 12,218,307}
Loans and advances held at amortised
cost, net 93,249,794 | 556,068 9,693,776 | 7,775,266 | 111,306,904
2012
Cwerdrafi &
Cammercial Credit Cards Consumer Cthers Total
SAR' 000 loans Loans
Perfomming loans and advances- gross G5, 666,487 31,805 9,924 6B | 7.020,022 103,292,978
Mon performing leans and advances, net 6749851 64,396 298 402 1,950 1,044 688
Total loans and advances 86,346,338 746,201 10223156 7021.872 104,337 667
Allowance for mpaiment (1,087 214) (64,835) {398,482 {1,764 {1,552,285)
Loans and advances held at amortised
cost, net 85,258,124 G81,366 9,824,674 | 7,020,208 102,785,372
b} Movement in allowance for impairment of credit losses are classified as follows:
il Movement in allowance for impairment of credit losses
!
2013
Overdraft & |
Commercial | Credit Cards | Consumer = Others Total
SAR' 000 loans Loans
Balance at beginning of the year 1,087,214 64,815 398,482 1,764 1,552,295
Provided during the year 820,999 47,795 234911 143 1,103,850
Written off during the year {64,294) (44,355) (182,719) - (291,408)
Recoveries of amounts praviousty provided (25,836) (13,252) {36,168} (1,174} (146,430)
Balance at the end of the year 1,748,083 54,982 414,508 | 733 2,218,307
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22
Cverdraft& - :
; Commercial | Credit Cards | Consumer Others Total
SAR’ 000 koans | Loans
Ealance al beginnirg of the year 1158204 1 57080 320,712 1,764 1,538,730
Froyided during the year 955379 59,957 249422 - 564,758
Writters off during the year (263.017) (38,584 {140,609) - {441 5100
I
Recoveries of ameunts peevioushy provided {64,352 (13,588 {31,643 I - {109,583
i Balance at the end of the year 1,087,214 64,835 396,482 1,784 1,552,285

The impairment charge for credit lesses includes provisions made against non performing commitments and

conlingencies.

The net charge [o income (provision net of recoveres} of SAR 857 million {20H2: SAR 455 million) in respect of
impairment charge for credit losses for the year is net of recoveries of SAR 146 million {2012; SAR 110 million). The
allowance for impairment includes SAR 923 million (2012 SAR 778 million) evaluated on a collecve impairment basis.

Mon performing loans and advances are disclosed net of accumulated special commission in suspense of SAR 121

million (2012: SAR 78 million).

il Movement of collective impairment provision:

SAR' 000 | 2013 M2
Balance at the beginning of the year 778,910 678,010
Provided during the yea 204,000 118,500
Wiritten off during the: year (59,500) (19,000
Balance at the end of the year 973,410 | 778,910 |
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¢] Credit quality of loans and advances

i} Neither past due nor impaired

SAR' 000 2013

Overdraft &

Commercial Credit Cards | Consumer Others Total

loans . Loans

Very strong guality incleding sovereign !
{A+toB) 32,453,044 2,832 445 705 | 2,950,478 35,852 050
Good quality (C+toC) 30394 222 8,869 BO7F 144 2,2_90.543 331300878
Safisfactory quakty {C-to E +) 28,499,341 479,710 | 8,084,146 | 2,358,872 39,420,059
Special mention (Eto E - 2,062,949 1,237 52,088 177,273 2,294 547
Tofal 83,410,546 492648 | 5,279,083 | 7775266 110,957,543
SAR’ 000 2m2

Orverdraft &

Commercial Credit Cards Consumse Cthers Total

lans Loans

Very strong guakty including soversign
A+t B} 24775 066 10,164 Jo662 | 237702 27,202,813
Good quakty [Tt to C) 26,652 042 6,420 382056 [ 2906907 20957 434
Salisfactory quality {C- to E +) 3,793,712 608,585 | 8,745,978 | 1,721,908 42871184
Special mention (E to E 5 1,748 274 1,877 67,901 14,185 1,832,238
Total £4,979,994 628,056 | 9235598 | 7.0x022 10 863,660

Very strong quality: Capitalization, earnings, financial strength, liquidity, managemenl, markel reputation and

repayment ability are excellent,

Good quaiity: Capitalization, earnings, financial strength, liquidity, management, market reputation and repayment

ability are good.

Satisfactory quality: Facilities require regular monitoring due to financial risk factors. Ability to repay remains at a

sabsfactory level.

Special mention: Facilities require close afiention of managemenl due to deterioration in the homowers financial
condition. However, repayment is currently protected.
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i) Ageing of loans and advances {past due but not impaired}
SAR 0] 2013
Cverdrafl &
Commercizl | Credil Cards CoLnsu mer QOthers Total
oans !
loans i
From t day to 30 days 23,51 57,971 364,161 445703
From 31 days to 90 days 76,410 18,760 78,254 173,424
From 9% days o 180 days 12,116 15,258 71,582 118,958
More than 180 days 290,729 3.754 17,728 2211
! Total 422 526 95,743 531,725 i 1,050,294
SAR Q00 2012
Overdraft &
Commercial Credit Cards Consumer Others Total
[ loans Loans
From 1 day to 30 days 2,626 20,603 481,267 514 496
From 31 days to 99 days 20212 16,797 95,256 34,182
From 91 days te 180 days 66,336 16,350 86,507 169,283
hsare than 180 days 415,402 - 15,846 431 348
Total 686,453 53,750 £89,065 1,429,309
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iiiy Economic sector risk concentrations for the [pans and advances and allowance for impairment losses

are as follows:

Allowance
Non for Loans and
Performing Performing, impairment advances,
SAR' D00 net losses net

2013
Government and guasi Govarnment 3,526,500 - . 3,626,500
Banks and other financial institutions P 1972274 80,002 {56,246) | 1,976,030
! Agriculture and fishing ' 2595304 17,659 {19,458) 2,593,505
i Manufacturing o 19,561,299 34,086 {228,5000 | 19,366,885
; Mining and quarmying 4,818 882 74 (12,280} 4,826,675
" Electricity, water, gas and health seqnvices 8,659,004 - (40,754 £,618,840
Building and consiru clion 9,893,273 201,248 {299 B94) 9,794 627
Commerge 11,160,290 5%6,240 {618,088) 17,138,442
Transportation and communication 7,850,933 3,310 (117,663) 7,764,580
Services 14,602,634 191,133 (214,881) | 14,578,885
Consumer kans and credif cards 10,398,199 352,136 (465,491) 10,281 544
Cthers 10,848,245 33,486 (141,642) | 10,740,089
112,007,837 1,517,374 (2,218,307} 111,306,904

Total

2012
Gowernment and quasi Govemnmeni 2,723,050 - - 2,723,050
Banks and cther financial instifulions 1,555 964 &0,003 {40,028 1,615,930
Agriculture amd fishing 2,261,863 8,528 {8,955) 2,261,435
Manufacturing 18,601 98BS 3,498 (131,584) 19,473,503
Mining and quarrying 1,565,350 2,281 {3,580) 1,564,071
Electricity, water, gas and health senices £.145.518 3,555 {14,098 8,337,575
Buding and construction 12,147,693 50,302 {211, 7013 | 11,986,204
Commesce 13,208,368 226,169 {33712y | 13,087,525
Transportation and commurication 8,286,742 12,793 84,183 8,215,352
Services 11,883,805 236,545 (1414000 [ 11,879,050
Consumer bans and credit cards 10,606,469 362 Bag (4683,.317) 10,506 (40
Cthers 11,083,057 ¥8117 (116,436 | 11,024,738
Total 103,202,978 1,044 684 (1552295 { 102,785,372

Loans and advances include Islamic related products of SAR 62 4465 million {2012 SAR 53,290 million),

d) Collateral

The Bank in the erdinary course of lending activities holds collaterals as security to mitigate credit nisk in the loans and
advances. These collaterals include time, demand and other cash deposits, financial guarantees, local and infernational
equiies, real eslate and other fixed assets. The collaterals are held mainly against commercial and consumer loans
and are reflected against the relevant exposures al their estimated net realizable valves.
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e) Loans and advances include finance lease receivables, which are analyzed as follows:

SAR’ 000 3 2012
Gross receivable from finance leases:
Eess than 1 year . - -
1to 5years [ 617421 767,685
Mose than 5 years _ T010,725 5,716,052
l 7,628,145 6483757
Hat receivable from finance leases 7628146 6,483,737
8 Investment in associates
SAR 000 213 M2
{Opening balance 171,948 170,789
Sale { ransfer of investments 24,989 (542)
| lmpairment provisian {34,000) -
Share of earnings 3323 1,80
Closing balance 166,270 171,948 [

Investment in associales represents 27 % shareholding in interest in the Banque BEMO Saudi Fransi {2012 27%} and
32.5% shareholding in Saudi Fransi Cooperative Insurance Company (Allianz Saudi Fransi) (2012: 32.5%)
incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The quoted price of the Bank’s investment in Saudi Fransi Cooperative
Insuranca Company [Allianz Saudi Fransi) as at December 31,2013 was SAR 520 million (2012 :SAR 344.5 million).

The Bank's share of associales’ inancial slatements:

Bangque Bemo Saudi Fransi - Aliianz Saudi Fransi

SAR' 000 Syria

23 amz 2013 2012
Total assets 833,319 1,105,130 477,239 364, 241
Total liabilities 769,560 1,006,740 421,057 309,817
Total equity 63,789 98,390 56,182 54,424
Totad income 19,254 46413 122378 128,870
Tota expenses 15,653 38,862 17,509 125,986
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8 Property and eguipment, net

Furniture,
Land and Leasehold | squipment 2013 2z
f buildings |improvements] and Tofal Total
SAR' 000 vehicles
Cost
Balance at ihe beginning of the vear 547,086 114,891 727,840 1,389,827 1,280,130
Additions 28,263 15,061 63,798 107,122 190,580
Brispasals and retirements 27} (35,394} {37,184) (72,805) (80,532
Balance af the end of the year 575,332 94,558 754,434 1,424,344 ¢ 1,380827
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Balance al the beainning of the year 218,572 2911 527,038 48,51 690,145
* Charge for the year 14,792 37,634 76,057 128,483 120,598
Disposals and refirements 24} 135,394) (37,160 {72,575) (80,223
Balange at the end of the year 233,340 5,191 565,935 804,426 748 522
Met book value as at Becember 31, 2013 341,992 89,407 185,519 519,918
Net book value as al December 31, 2012 328,523 111,860 200,802 641,305

Leasehold improvements as at December 31, 2013 include work in progress amounting to SAR 20 millien (2012 SAR
22 million). Fumiture, equipment and wehicle s include information technology related assets.

10 Ofher assats

SAR' 000 2013 02
Accrued special commission recefvable — Banks and other financial instifutions Mo 956

- Investments 86,207 B5,321

— Loans and advances 281,848 256 053

Total accrued special commissien receivable 368,404 343,370

Acoounts receivable 384,794 630,505

Positive fair value of derivatives (note 11} 2,772,572 4 492 D42

{ither real estate &7.800 4 3]

Cthers 166,445 541,341

Tatal ) 3,980,015 6,012,058
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11

Derivatives

In the ardinary course of business, the Bark utilizes the folowing darivative financial instruments for bath trading
and hedging purposss:

a) Swaps

Swaps are commilments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. For commission rate Swaps,
counterparties generally exchange fixed and floating rate commission payments in a single currency withaut
exchanging principal. For currency rate swaps, fixed and floating commission payments and principal are
exchanged in different currencies.,

b] Forwards and futures

Forwards and futures are conlractual agreements to either buy or sell a specified currency, commodity or financial
instrument at a specified prive and date in the future. Forwards are custornized contracts tansacied in the over
the counter market. Foreign currency and commission rate futures are ransacted in standardized amounts on
regulated exchanges and changes in futures coniract values are settled daily.

¢) Forward rate agreements

Forward rate agreements are individually negotiated commissfon rale contracts that call for a cash seftlement for
the difference between a contracted commission rate and the market rate on a specified future date, on a netional
principal for an agreed pericd of tme.

dy Opticns

Options are contractual agreements under which the seiler {writer} grants the purchaser {hoider) the right, bul nol
the obligation, to either buy or sell at fixed future date o al any time during a specified period, a specified amount
of a cumengy, commodity or financial instrument at a pre-determined price.

Held for trading purposes

Most of the Bank's derivative rading activities relale to sales, posifioning and arbifrage. Sales actvities involve
oftering products to customers, Banks and other financial instifutions in order, inter alia, fo enable them to transfer,
modify or reduce current and future risks. Positioning invelves managing market risk positions with the expectation
of profiting from favorable movements in prices, rafes or indices. Arbitrage involwes identifying, with the
expectation of profiting from price diferentals between markets or products.

Held for hedging purpeses

Tite Bank has adopted a comprehensive system for the measurement and the management of risk. Part of the risk
management piccess involves managing the Bank's exposure to flucluations in foreign exchange and commission
rates to reducs its exposure to currency and comemission rate risks to an acceptable level as determined by the
Board of Directors in accordance with the guidelines issued by SAMA. The Board of Direclors has established the
tevels of currency risk by setting limits on counterparty and currency position exposures. Positions are menitored
on a daily basis and hedging strafegies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits.
The Board of Directors has also established the level of commission rate risk by setting commission rate sensitivity
limits. Commission rale exposure in terms of the sensitivity is reviewed on a periodic basis and hedging strategies
ara used lo reduce the exposure within the established limits.
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As pat of its asset and [iability management the Bank uses derivatives for hedging purposes in order to adjust its
own exposure i cumency and commission rate risks. This is generally achieved by hedging specific tansacfions as
welt a3 stralegic hedging against overall consolidated statemenl of financial position exposures. Strategic hedging
does not qualify for spesial hedge accounting and the related derivatives are accounted for as held for trading.

The Bank uses forward foreign exchange contracts and currency rate swaps lo hedge against specifically idenlifisd
currency risks. In additon, the Bank uses commission rate swaps and commission rate fubures to hedgs against the
commission rate risk arsing from speciicaly identified fised commission rate exposures. The Bank alse uses
commission ate swaps to hedge against the cash How risk arsing on certain flealing rate exposures. In all such
cases, the hedging refationship and objective, including details of the hedged items and hedging instrument are
formally documentad and the transaciions are accounted for as fair value or cash flow hedges.

Cash flow hedges

The Bank is exposed to variability in future commission income cash flows on non-fading assets and liabilities which
bear variable commission rate. The Bank uses commission rate swaps as cash flow hedges of these comimission
rate risks. Also, as a result of firm commitments in foreign cuirendies, such as its issued foreign currency debt, the
Bank is exposed to fareign exchange and commission rate dsks which are hedged with oross currency commission
rate swaps. Below is the schedule indicaing as at 31 December, the peruds when e hedged cash flows are
expectad to occur and when they are expecied to affect profit or loss:

SAR' 000 Within 1 year 1-3 years 33 years Over 5 years
2013

Cash inflows (assets] 1,113,656 1,617,193 851,267 1,273
Cash oul flows {liabilities} (224,829) {1,393,568) (1,147,747} (10,198)
Met cash inflow 888,827 223,627 (296,450) {2,825}
2012

Cash inflows {assets) 998,321 1,465,549 563,928 20,502
Cash out fiows {iabilties) {189,839 (973.671) {320,737 {13,001}
Net cash inflow ! {outflow) 508,452 492 178 143,191 i 7411

The net gain on cash flow hedges ransferred ko the consclidated statement of income during the year was as

follows:
SAR' D00 2013 12
Spedial commission income 1,026,964 423,428
Special commission expense {4£3.235) {337,559
tel gain on cash Mow hedges transfered to consolidated slatement of
income 543,729 585,855

The lables below show the posilive and negative fair values of derivative financial instuments held, together with
their notienal amounts analyzed by the term to maturity and monihly average. The notional amounts, which provide
an indication of the vofumes of the ransaciions outslanding at the year end, do not necessarily reflect the amounts of
future cash flows involved. These notional amounts, thersfors, are neither indicative of the Bank's exposure to credit
risk, which is generaliy imited lo the posttive fair value of the dertvatives, nor to market isk.
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Notional amounts by term to maturity

Derivative fnancial instruments :
Pasitive Hegalive Notienal i
fair Fair amagunt ‘Withen 3 312 1-5 Over 5 Manthhy
SAR' 000 valse vatue total months moaths years years avarage
Held for trading
! Commissicn ra%s seaps 1663853 1514732 | 127501840 12500950 | 10887004 ETOME24 089227 135240521
;- Corrmiss on rate fwres g opions 307 2,811,568 2,4 (4 (D 2673000 1702318 T16.250 29772794
Foward ralg sgreerens - - SE3333
Favward orspn sxcnarge coracts 82 195 29,333 A2 18T 355 | 32311363 B 444 ™MD 431,280 | 42 575,655
Curtarcy opticns 18,549 23,616,374 6338206 | 11453907 54823261 32450815
Oihars Hrog 27 4T 519,945 B899 T8 1284740 - 2162,146
Held as fair value hedges
Cormigsian rate swape 19,514 11,026 5 504 0 - 2,500 5,317,500 264,000 5516400
Hedd as cash flow hedges
Commissior. ;ate swaps 264240 119,800 54,858,960 2318,750 5,571,872 416,295,138 673,000 0479016
Total 2773258 1,674,091 2?955‘.543 56,490,255 | 48932649 | 164089062 9742477 | 239123477
Fair value of netting arrangements |6H6} {585} [42,500) [37,500) {5,000} {45000}
Tokal after netting {notes 10 and
16} 2,772,512 1674205 | 279,222.143 | 56452755 | 45007849 | 154,000,062 9,742 ATT | H89,078457
Notional amounts by term fo maturity
Dierivatlve financial instruments Positive Megative Hotional i l
fair fair amount Within 3 12 1-5 Owes 5 Maonthhy
SAR' 00 vahre value total manths months years years average
2082
Held for trading
Commigsicn rate swaps 2639ATE | 230B036 | 23007120 [ 9954564 | 25121913 d2526E53 | H4D180% | 122550740
Covmmissgn rate Uitores 2nd cplions 10304 2,757 42 TBE G5% 20000 238,750 CER RS 1Y 1,655,000 Frlsmz
Fomarnd ratke agreama ats - 2.525 1,050,000 - 1,000 035 - 450,333
Fooward farsgn exchange contacls #4635 98.657 45,634,020 | 3EZ29780 [ 11023713 1,110,537 - 52744059
Currery options 35 - 46,596,105 | 12766,235 | 26,301,704 9,518,102 - 62745920
hers 12,295 1, 40575 92.7a 83,750 1,154,130 - 4081 056
He'd as far valle hedpes .
Commissan rabe swaps 18455 My 3,635 052 - TECEZ E 328000 264 (10 4. TIET1E
Held as cask fiow hedges
Cammission rafe sweps 1,456 083 17,635 45970454 1320000 4504750 33,495,704 A5300] 32988 305
!
Tedal 4453592 | 251537 | 31290124 | S4BEIAN4 | TRAGDAIG [ 171255065 JAA0END [ 331.918.742
Fairvahse of recting arangements [1,5631 [1.540] [32 50070 - - B2500 . 1343 530
Tokal afier neting sncdes 10 and 15) 4202 04F [ 2830957 | SM1E76M [ 84633414 | TEIS0635 | P20 7RS | 912330 | 31504

Commission rate swaps include the notional amount of SAR 42 millien {2012 SAR 53 millien) with an aggregate positive
fair value and a negative fair value of SAR 0.7 million {2012: SAR 2 milfion) which are natted oul for credit exposure
purposes as the Bank intends o settle thess on a net basis.
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The tabke below shews a surrmary of hadgad items, the nature of the risk being hedged, the hedgiryg instrument and its fai value.

| SAR 000 ! I
: " Fairvalue | Cost Risk Hedging instrument © Positive | Negative
Description of hedged items I ‘ fair value |fair value
| 2013
Fixed commiission rate loans 345,663 334,000 | Fair vakie | Commission rate swap - 11,026
Fixed commission rate debt securities| 5230101 5,250,000 | Fair vaie | Commission rate swap | 19,514 -
and sukirk ;
Floating commission rate invesiments!  £21,393 826,250 |Cash flow | Commission rale swap 1,742 6,600
Floating commission rate loans 54,882,007 | 54,032,710 | Cashflow ; Commission rate swap | 962488 | 113,200
2042 '
Fied commission rate loans 437,845 415,052 | Fair value | Commissian rate swap i - 24027
Feed commission rate deposits Fair value | Commissian rate swap
Fixed commission rate debl securities| 5,230,044 5,250,000 | Fair value 1 Commission rate swap 19,450 -
and Sukuk
Floating commission rate investments| 319,702 38,7580 { Cash flow | Commission rate swap | B420 -
Floating commission rate loans 44823,255  44.851,704 | Cash flow | Commission rate swap 1447568 17,635

The net gains on e hedging instrumendts for fair value hedge are SAR 3 million {2012: losses SAR 5 milion). The net gains on the
hedged item atfributable fe the hedged qisk are SAR & milion {2012: loss SAR 3 miflion). The net positive fair value of the derdvalives
is SAR Nil million (2012: negative fair value SAR 2 milion).

12

13

Approximately F7% (2012 22%) of the net positve fair values of the Bank's derivatives are entered into with Fnancial instituiens and
less than 20% (204 2: 21%} of ihe net positive falr values of the derivaives are with any single counterpart group at the reporting date.
The derivative activifies are mainfy camied out under Bank's treasury banking segment.

Due to banks and cther financial instifutions
SAR' 000 2M3 2012
Current accounts 555 407 575,588
Money market feposits 3,112 486 5,086 880
Total 3,667,893 5662 468
Customers' deposits
SAR' 000 013 2012
Demand 82,824,578 61,805,382
Saving 449,520 448 802
Time 45,059,599 &, 236, 454
Other 3,167,890 3,081,089
Total 121,601,187 115,571,767

Other customers' deposits indude SAR 1,588 milion {2012: SAR 1,450 million) related to margins held for

irrevocable commitments.

Time deposils include Islamic related products of SAR 21,448 million (2012 SAR 18,214 million).
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Custemers' deposits include forefgn currency deposits as follows:

! !

_ SAR’ 000 ’ 2013 2012
Demand 7,083,524 ©  BOI.TZ0 |
Saving 12,234 12,731
Time © 14,329,196 15,507,740
Other 354,580 424,509

i I
Totat 21,819,534 22882709 !

14 Termloans

The five year term foan of Euro 100 million matured and was fully settled during 2013, In addition, the Bank has also

seftled e five year ranche (USD 342 million) temn loan which matured in 2013,

15 Debt securities and Sukuks

In 2010, the Bank issued USD 650 million in & year non-convertible and unsecured fixed rate bonds, under its USD
2 Biliion Eure Medium Term Mote programme which is fisted on the London Stock Exchange. The bonds pay a
semi-annual coupon of 4.25% and are to be used for general banking purposes. The Bank also raised funds
through medium term Sharia compliant sukuk of USTH 750 million for 5 years in May 2012, under a USD 2 Billion
programme listed on the London Stock Exchange. In addition, the Bank issued a privately placed SAR 1,900 million
unsecured subordinated sukuk in December 2012 for a period of 7 years. The sukuk is settied through the Tadawul
depository system. However, the Bank has an oplion to repay the unsecured subordinated sukuk after 5 years,

subject ko prior appeoval of SAMA and terms and conditions of the agreement.

16 Cther liabilities

!

SAR’ 000 2013 2012
Accrued special commission payable — Banks and other financial instibutions ! 232 708
- customers’ deposits 65,475 80,416
- term bans and stkuks 46,515 41,351
- gthers 497,869 272805
Tokal accrued special commission payable 613,112 £05,378
Accounts payabke and accrued expenses 1,626,838 1532802
Meqalive fair value of dervatives [note 11} 1,674,205 2530997
{thers 326,707 460,635
Total | 4440862 |, 4047902

17 Share capital

The awthorised, issued and fully paid share capital of the Bank consists of 904 million shares of SAR 10 each {2012
904 million shares of SAR 10 gach). The Board of Directors have recommended {meeting hefd en 09% January 2014)
to the shareholders of the Bank, to distribute dividend in shares to increase the share capital from SAR 9,040 million

to SAR 12,053 milion through the issuance of 1 stock dividend shares for every 3 shares held, by capitafization of

reserves, The number of shares will accordingly increase from 904 milion shares o 1,205 milfon shares. The
recommendalion on issuance of stock dividend shares is subject to approval of the Bank's shareholders in an exira-

ordinary shareholders' meeting and the relevant authoriies.
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The ownership of the Bank's share capital is as follows:

|

SAR" 00 : 2043 201z
Saudi sharehaklers 6.9 6,227,679 | B277 678

| Credit Agricote Corparate and Investment Bank {CA-CIB) A 2,812 500 . 2,812,500
Total 100 9,040,179 0,040,179

18 Statutory and general reserve

In accordance with Saudi Arabian Banking Control Law and the Articles of Association of the Bank, a minimum of 25%
of the annual net income is required to be transferred fo a statutory reserve until is reserve equals the paid up capital

of the Bank.

An amount of SAR 1,487 million {2112: SAR 754 million} has been transferred from the refained earnings to statutory
reserve dunng the year. This reserve is net available for distribution,

The Bank had appropriated SAR 583 million to general reserve from refained earnings.

19 Other reserves

Available for
Cash flow sale Total

SAR 000 hedges investments
2013
Balance at beginning of the year 920,255 #7.877) . 892,378
et change in far value 77,233 71,286 {5.947)
Transfer bo consolidated statement of income (543,729 {74,034} (517,763)
Met mavemnent during the year (620,962) (2,748) 623,710
Balance at the end of the year 299,203 {30,625) 263,668
12
Balance at beginning of the year 839,569 ' [63,848) 876,023
Wet change in fair value 566,256 41173 G607 428
Transfer to consolidated statement of income {585,569) {5,204 (581,073)
Met moverment during the year {19614} | 35959 16,355
Balance at the end of the year 920,255 127 877} | 892,378

Other reserves represent the net unrealized revaluation gains { {iosses} of cash Row hedges and availabie for sale
investments. These reserves are not available for distribution.

Transfer to consolidated statement of income from available for sale reserve represents, gains and losses on
disposal of avaflable for sale investments amounting to SAR 74 million (2012: SAR 5 million). Accordingly, the
cumulative gain or loss recognised previously in other comprehensive income and gain or loss on disposal of
investments during the year and impairment charges have been transfarred to consdlidated statement of income. For
cash flow hedges, the amounlt shown as balance of reserves as al December 31, 2013 is expecled to affecl the
consalidated stalement of income in the coming one to five years,
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20 Commitments and contingencies
a} Legal proceedings

As at December 31, 2013 there were 20 {2012: 18] legal procesdings outstarding 2gainst the Bank. No material
provision ftas been made as e related professional lega! advice indicates that it is unlikely that any significant loss
will arise,

b) Capital commitments

As at December 31, 2043 the Bank had capital commitments of SAR 47 million (2012 SAR 41 million) in respect of
buitdings and equipment purchases.

¢} Credit related commitments and contingencies
The primary purpose of these insiruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required.

Guaranfees and standby letters of credt, which represeni irrecoverable assurances thal the Bank will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meel its obligaffons to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans
and advances.

Documentary letters of eredit which are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of 2 customes authorizing a third
party to draw drafts on the Bank up fo a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are generally
collateralized by the underying shipments of goods fo which they relate and therefore have significantly less rsk.

Cash requirements under guarantees and standby lefters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Bank does not generally expect the third party lo draw funds under the agreement.

Acceptances comprise underfakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Bank expects
mosl acceptances to be presented before being reimbursed by e customers.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portion of authorizations to extend credit, principally in the form of
foans and advances, guarantees and fetters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the
Bank is potentially exposed to a loss in an amount equal fo the total unused commitments. However, the likely
amount of loss, which cannot readily be quanlified, is expected fo be considerably less than the total unused
commitment as most commitments i extend credit are contingent vpon custormers maintaining spedific credil
standards. The total cutstanding commitments to exfend credit do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, as many of these commitments could expire or terminate without being funded,

i} The contractual maturity structure for the Bank’s commitments and contingencies is as follows:

Within 2 312 ] 1-5 Crver 5

SAR' 000 menths | months years years Total
M2

Letters of credit 12,780,109 2,979,653 B43.Mé - | 16,602,788
Letters of guarantee 11,396,466 | 18,302,287 | 16,590,715 519,594 | 46,509,062
Acceplances 1,564,257 892,516 199,164 - | 2658937
Imevacable commitments ko extend credi 161,264 452 617 3,879,623 48,300 | 4,541,304
Total 25902096 | 22,627,083 | 27612518 567,894 | 70,709,581
M2

Letters of credit 9039.275 | 3,693,659 300,951 1,227 | 13,035,112
Letters of guarantee 19,237,875 16,800623 | 12205857 452704 | 40,706,160
Acceptances 1,194,374 057,404 85343 - | 220713
Imevocable commimants o extend credit 470,625 1242502 2790629 236476 | 4,740,232
Total 21942249 | 22703188 | 15352780 690,407 | 60,585,634
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21

The outstanding unused portion of non-firm commitments which can be revoked unilaterally at any time by the Bank

as at December 31, 2013 is SAR 95,025 miflion (2012: SAR 87,422 milion).

iiy The analysis of commitments and contingencies by counterparty is as follows:

SAR’ 000

2013 w12 |
Govemnment and quasi government 43,156 1617452
Coiporate 56,132,995 50,149,208
Banks and other financial instifutions 12,307,279 8,697 872
Other 226,160 224,102
Total 70,709, 58 60,685,634

d) Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease paymerts under non-cancelable operating leases where the Bank

is the lesses are as

follows:;

SAR’ D00 2013 212
Less than 1 year 7,896 3
1to5years 98114 68,357
Cver 3 years 142,71 138,991
Total 248 801 214 669

Special commission inceme and expense

SAR’ Q00 2013 2012
Special commissicn income
Investments

- Avalable for sale 187,775 191,863

~ Held to maturity 14,259 29723

- Other ivestments hekl at amortized cost 198,622 110,248

400,556 331634

Dug from banks and other financial insBtutions 29,964 47 515

Loans and advances 3,826,430 3680831

Total 4,257,050 4,069,280
Special commission expense

Dus to banks and other firancial institutions 12,485 12,361

Castomers' deposits 100,226 615548

Temn loans and debt securities 181,026 135,504

Total 893,747 ¥63,503
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22 Fees and commission income, net

SAR 000 2013 Mz
Fees and canmission income : :

- Share trading, brokesage, fund managemen! and corporate finance [ 266,631 | 367,704

- Trade finance 422677 | 381,374

- Project finance and advisory 331,633 207 475

- Card products | 132,846 130,542

- Other banking senvices ! 149,401 | 140,997

Total fees and commission income 1,302 888 1,328,083
Fees and commission expense i

- Share trading and brokerage 45,776 55,184

- Custodial services 4,074 4 869

- Card products 102,814 43,795

- Other banking senvices 7 659 | 761

Total fees and commission expense : 153,323 154,610

Fees and commission income, net ) 1,149,565 1,173,483

23 Trading income, net

SAR' 000 2013 2012

' Foreign exchange [losses) { gains, net (58) ' 8BS
Investments- held as FVES (trading}, net 7,663 24454
Dertvatives, net 98,117 112 684
Tofal 105,712 138,04

24 Dividend income

SAR' Q0D 2013 202

Ayailabie for sale investments M 422 21,379

25 Gains on non-trading investments, net

SAR' (00 2013 212

Available for sale £0,184 Fa.rf
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26 Other operating income

SAR’ 000 | 2013 2012
(3ains on disposal of property and equipment i 227 134
Recoveries of written off loans ; 49 17 45,361
{thers 1,065 93

| Totar 50,509 4558 |

Zf  Other operating expenses

SAR’ DOG a3 212
Loss on dispesal of properfy and equipment 11 &
Others 15,066 3,007
Total 15077 ; 3,058

28 Basic and dilutad earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are calculated by dividing
the net income for the year attributatile b equity holders' of the Bank by 904.0 million shares .

29 Gross dividend, zakat and income tax

The Board of Direclors has declared interim gross dividend of SAR 398 million {SAR 0.4 net per share). Total gross
interim dividend ko Saudi shareholders was SAR 274 million and fotal interim dividend to foreign shareholders was
SAR 124 miliion. No final dividend has been proposed by the Board of Directors for the year 2013 (2012; SAR 0.80}.
Gross dividend

SAR' 000 2013 amz
Inferim dividend 397,810 -
Final proposed gross diidend - 810,000

Tofal i T a0 - 810,800

The zakat and income fax, attributable to Saudi and foreign shareholders are as foliows:
i) Zakat

Zakat attributable to the Saudi shareholders for the year amounted approximately to SAR 56 million (2012: SAR 50
mitlion}. Zakat included in interim gross dividend amounted to SAR 25 rmillion and estimated Zakat for the second half
of 2013 amounted to SAR 31 million which was deducted from retained eamings.

The Bank received Zakal f Tax assessment for the years 2010 and 2011. This assessment is primarily due to the
disallowance of cerfain long-ferm investments from the Zakal base of the Bank. The Bank, in consultation with its
advisors, has contested the assessmenl, and the Saudi Banking Industry has raised this issue with the regulator for a
satisfactory resoluion. Af the current slage, a reasonable esbmafion of the exposure cannot be determined refiably.
The Bank also received the Zakat / Tax assessments for the years 2005 to 2009.The Bank has fited an appeal for
these assessments.
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i} Income tax

Income tax payabls in respect of foreign shareholder — CA-CIB's current year's share of income Lax is approximately
SAR 154 million (2012: SAR 186 million}. Tax deducted from the interim gross dividend amounted to SAR 50 million
and esltimated tax for the second half of 2013 amounled to SAR 64 million of which SAR 14 million was deducted from
five retained earnings in proporfien to foreign shareholding and remaining tax of SAR 50 million is cfaimed from the
foreign sharehclders.

30 Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated staternent of cash flows comprise the following:

SAR 000 2013 2012
Cash and balances wilth SAMA excluding stalutory depasit (note 4) 10,350,956 8915775
Due from banks and other financial institutions maturing within ninefy days

from the date of acquisition 1,545,091 5435375
Total 11,856,047 4,351,151

31 Employees compensation practices

SAR' 000 2M3
Humber of Fixed Variable Total Forms of

Categories of employees employees | compensation | compensation compensation payment
Senior gxeculives 18 33,903 39,610 73,512 Cash
Employess engaged in risk

taking activities 7 159,207 68,129 227 3% Cash
Employees engaged in conkrol )

funchions 245 77,508 19,330 98,388 Cash
Other employees 2,446 412,619 47,068 459,687 Cash
Total 2,988 683,237 174,187 B57 424

SAR' 000 212

Number of Fixed Variable Total Farms of

Categories of emplayees employees compensation compansation compensaion payment
Senior executives 21 3767 40,550 Frii7 Cash
Employees engaged in risk

taking activities 241 142,512 B9.751 212,263 Cash
Employees engaged in control

functicns 249 77402 20,397 o7 719 Cash
Other employees 2,166 348,830 44,435 394,255 Cash
Total 2677 806,911 175,043 781,554

Senior executives:

This comprises senior management having responsibifity and authority for formulating strategies, directing and controlling
the activities of the Bank induding ME and DMDs.
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Employees engaged in risk taking activities:

This comprises managerial staff within the business lines {Corporate, Retail, Treasury and Investment banking and
Brokerage}, who are responsife for executing and implementing the business strafegy on behalf of the Bank. This
includes those involved in recommending and evaluating cred limits and credit worthiness, pricing of loans, undertaking
and executing business proposals, reasury dealing activifies, investment management and brokerage ssrvices.

Employees engaged in control functions:

This refers lo employses working in divisions that are not invalved in risk taking acfivities but engaged in review funciions
(Risk Management, Compliance, Corporate Governance, Legal, Internal Audit, Finance and Accounting). These funciions
are fully independent from nisk taking units,

Other employees:

This includes all other employeses of the Bank, excluding Ihase already reported under the above calegories.

Governance of Compensation

The Board of Directors of BSF, through the Nomination and Compensation Committee (NCCOM) is responsible for the
overall design and oversight of the compensation and performance management system.

NCCOM: Terms of Reference

a. Overseeing the compensation system’s design and operation on behalf of the Board of Directors;

b. Prepanng the Compensation Policy and placing it before the Board for approval;

¢. Periodically reviewing the Compensation Policy on ils own or when advised by the Board, and making
recommendations to the Board for amending/updating the Palicy;

d. Periodically evafuating the adequacy and effectiveness of the Compensation Policy to ensure that its stated
objeclives are achieved;

e. Evaluating practices by which compensation is paid for potential future revenues whose timing and
{ikelihgod remain encertain;

f. Making recommandalions o the Board on the level and compesition of remuneration of kay executives of
the Bank. The key execufives for this purpose will indude all those executives whose appaintment is
subject to no objection by SAMA,

g. Determination of bonus pool based on risk-adjusted peofit of the Bank for payment of performance bonus:

h. Reviewing compliance of the Compensafion Policy wilth these Rules and the FSB principles and
Standards;

i. Performing any other related tasks to comply with the regulatory requiremenis.

j. Considering the suitability of candidates for membership of the Board in accordance with the Adicles of
Association and appraved policies and standards;

k. Undertaking an annual review of the requirement of suitable skills and qualifications for the membership
of the Board;

i. Recommending to the Board criteria for the composition of the Board and its Committees, including the
Aumber of Board members, and independence of directors;

m. Conduciing an annual evaluation of the independent status of each candidate proposad for election at the
General Assembly meeting and reporting {he results of such evaluation to the Board;

n. Satisfying ilself ko the Board and its committees, as applicable, are in compliance with all regulatory
requiremeants, including its composition;

0. Assisting the Board in reviewing the adequacy of the succession planning process and oversee ils
implementafion;

p. Reviewing the performance and making recommendations lo the Board regarding the compensation of
the Senior Management of BSF;

9. Reviewing and assessing the adequacy of this Charfer every three years and submitting this Charfer and
any amendments to the Board for approval;

r. Conducting self-evaluation to assess the Committee’s contibution and effectiveness in fulfliing its
mandate and presenl it ko the Board every three years.,
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Salient Features of BSF Compensation Policy

Operating in Sauwd Arabia the sole Middle Eastern country member of the G20, BSF Management working clossly
with the Board of Directors’ has an ingrained culture and track record of running prudent compensafion palicy
during periods of both prosperily and financia crisis. BSF follows sfrict governance-orientated compensation
pracices. 85F compensation system promotes meritocracy, conliols excessive risk-taking and ensures effective
risk managemenl The compensation poficy as recently amended by the NCCOM and approved by the Board,
cenforms o compensation related corporafe governance and supperts the SAMA miles and Financial Stability
Board (FSB) guidelines. It is structured fo meel challenges ie. altracling, relaining and motivating highly skilled
staff, recognizing that:

a] BSF success heaily depends on the talents and efforts of highly skilled individuals;

b Competition within the Kingdem and the GuIFs financial services industry for qualified tafents has offen been

intense.

In line with the Saudi banking industry practices, BSF uses a mix of fixed and variable compensation. The former is
driver by job size, responsibilily, supply and jobs' relative worth in the market. The latter is driven by performance
tus paymentis based on meeting pre-agreed targets.

The fixed compensaton package is composed of base salary, allowances and finge bensfits. As a standard
practice in e Kingdom, the fixed income is driven by a base pay that is regulaiy benchmarked and compared with
competiton to ensure competitiveness.

As per Saudi banking industry practice, BSF pays a Performance Bonus, the variable component As a form of
incentive, the Bonus Pool is set by Management and NCCOM working closely with Chief Risk Gfficer, Chief
Financial Officer and Human Resources Manager based on the year's performance o net profit adjusted to the full
range of identifiable risks.

BSF as part of its reward philosophy aims on the perfect blend of benefits that is externally competitive o retain,
motivate and engage. A level playing field has always been an important consideration in our reward strategy. BSF
has designed its compensation struchure with prudence, Variable pay deferral, for instance, is generally a sound
way o encourage long-term commitment. But doing so when most banks, both in the country and in the region are
still paying one-time in cash, requires a degree of caution,

Allocation of Bonus to Groups and Divisions is based on key Performance Indicator (KPI) target achievements.
Cistribution of bonus to individual employees is based on review of performance by respective supervisors
measured in terms of meeting the KPI fargst.

Operating segments

Cperating segments are idenffied on the basis of intemal reperts about components of the Bank that are
regulary reviewed by the Bank's Board of Directors in its funclion as chief decision maker in order to allocate
resources to the segments and lo assess its performance.

Transactions between operating segments are approved by the management as per agreed ferms and are
reporfed according to the Bank's interna! transfer pncing policy. These terms are in line with nomnal commercial
terms and conditions. The revenue from external parfies report to the Board is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consclidated statement of income.

There have been no changes to the basis of segmentation or the measuremeant basis for he segment profit or
loss since December 31, 2012, The Bank’s primary business is conducted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

a) The Bank's reportable segmants under IFRS 8 ara as follows:

Retail Banking — incorporates private and small establishment cuslomers' demand accounts, overdrafts, loans,
saving accounts, deposits, credit and debit cards, consumer ioans, certain forex products and auto leasing.
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Corporate Banking — incorporales corporate and medium establishment custorners' demand accounts, deposits,
overdrafis, foans and other credit fzcilifes and derivative products,

Treasury ~ incorporates treasury senvices, trading activifes, investment securities, money market, Bank's funding

operations and derivafive products.

Investment banking and broksrage — investment management services and asset management activities
refated to dealing, managing, aranging, advising and custody of securities, retall investments products, corporate
finance and internalional and iocal shares brokerage senvices and insurance,

The Bank's total assets and liabilifes as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, its tola operating income and
expensas, share in eamings f {|osses) of associates and its net income attibutable fo equity holders of the Bank
for the years then ended by operafing segments, are as follows:

; Investment
Retail Corporate hanking
banking banking Trzasury and Total
SAR' 000 brokerage
Todal assels 16,006,414 | 96,733,562 | 53413201 1,903,497 | 170,056,674
[mvestment in associates - - 166,270 166,270
Tatal liabilities . B6,101,H3 | 65,806,674 | 13,230,948 1,701,408 | 146,840,043
Total operating ncome 1,450,363 2,518,980 806,201 278,991 5,052,535
Share in garnings of associates, nef - - 3323 - 3323
Total operating expenses 1,183,618 1,115,253 177,096 164, 216 2,650, 283
Met incame ifor the year 256, 745 1,403,627 632,428 112,775 2,405 575
Results
ket special commission inceme 1,168,947 1,780,745 375,797 39,764 3363303
Fees and commission income, nef 193,184 732,538 (13,384) 237,227 1,149,565
Exchange income, net 46,399 - 235,440 - 281,839
Trading mcome, net - - 105,712 - 105,712
Impaiment chamges for credt losses, net 234 883 722,537 - - 957 420
Depreciation and amortization B9.738 17,074 12,047 G624 128,483
2012
Tatal assets 15,760,666 | 90,978,517 45,975,274 1,002,845 | 157 777,302
investment in associates - - 171,048 - 171,948
Total kabifities SIFOTATT | 61825844 18,583,551 830,812 | 135,000,484
Total cperating income 1,415,004 2,337,384 920,714 336,399 5,000,551
Share in ¥sses of associales, net - - 1,801 - i,801
Total cperating expenses 1,111,078 568,851 167 564 145,623 1,596,216
Met incame for the year 303,976 1,768,533 754 851 167,776 | 3,015,136
Results
Met special commission income 1,151,880 1,656 735 477435 19.718 3305 777
Feses and commission income, et 181,562 678,514 {1,674] 316,681 1,173,483
Exchange income, net 39,974 - 208,545 - 246,514
Trading income, net : - - 138,034 - 138,034
Impairment charges for credit losses, net 226,848 228,326 - - 455,175
Depreciation and amaortization : 88,110 18,625 17,206 5 657 120,598
i
[
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B The Bank’s credit exposuse by operating segments is as follows:

Retail Comporate

SART 000 banking banking Treasury Total
2013

Statemant of francial position assets 15,121,714 95,492,929 . 48,202,579 162,817,209

Commitrents and confingencies 253 457 37,580,607 -| 37,834,064

Derivatives - 225 4,441,349 £ 441,574

amz

Slatement of financial pasition assets 5,819,444 90,753,180 | 43683088 | 150.265,701

Cammitments and contingencies 114,975 32,817,564 -1 32832540

Derivatives - - 6,204 378 6,24 378

33

Credit exposure comprises the carrying value of consolidated statement of financial position assels excluding cash,
property and equipment. other assets and credit equivalent valug of commitments, contingencies and derivatives.
The credit squivalent value of commitments, contingencies and derivatives are calculated as per the Saudi Arabian
tonetary Agency (SAMA) quidelines,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one pariy to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obfigation and will cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. Credit exposures arse principaly in lending activities that [zad to loans and
advances, and invesiing activities. There is also credit risk on credit related commitments and contingsencies and
derivalives.

The Bank altempts o control credit nsk by monitoring credit exposures, limiling transactions with specific
counterparties, and by continually assessing the craditworthiness of counterparties. The Bank's risk management
policies are designed to identify and to set appropriale risk mits and to monitor the risks and adherence o limits.,

In addition to monitoring credit limils, the Bank manages the credit exposure refating to its frading activities by
enfefing into master netfng agreements and collaleral arangements with counterparies in appropriale
circumstances, and by fimiting the duration of exposure, In certain cases the Bank may also close oul transactions or
assign them to other counterparties ko mitigate credil risk. The Bank's credit risk for derivatives represents the
potentia cost to replace the derivative contracts if counterparties fail to fulfil their obligation, and to control the level
of credit fisk taken, the Bank assesses counlerparies using the same techniques as for its lending aclivities.

Congentrations of credit nisk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, ¢r have similar economic features that would cause their abilty bo meet
confraciual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or cther conditions. Concentrations
of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank's performance: to developments affecting a particular indusiry
or geographical focation.

The Bank seeks to manage its credil sk exposure through diversification of lending activites fo ensure that there is
no undug concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or business. It also fakes
secuiity when appropriate. The Bank also seeks additional collateral from the counterparly as soon as impaiment
indicators are noticed for the relevart individual loans and advances.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the underying
agreement and monitoes the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for
impairment [osses.

The Bank regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets products and
emenging best praclice.
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On an ongoing basis. the Bank continues to improve its organization and resources in oider to achieve strict,
prudent and exhaustive risk management. The Risk Department is set up in such a way so as lo assure
independence of the Credit Division fiom the business lines. Commen risk managemenl procedures are adapted
to the changes in the Bank's activiies and updated on a regular basis. Business lines submit the credi
applicaticns to the Credit Division which in tumn acts as Secrelary of the Credit Commiites. The principle of dual
signature by the business line and Credit Division applies for all commitments. Above a cedain limit, the files are
submitted to the Executive Commitiee for their approval,

Risk rating is usad to classify borrowing customers according to the Bank’'s assessment of the intrinsic risk quality
of a customer. The Bank uses an aulomated rating system to assign the rating of custemers, which lakes into
consideration the quaniitative financial data as wel as qualitafive elements assigned by the business lines. The
system uses a scale of 13 grades and allows comparisen with ratings of international rating agencies. Corporate
and commercial cusiomers are assigned specific ratings accordingly,

The Inans and advances portfolio is reviewed periodically, with the annual credit application review, which assists
to maintain and improve the quality of assets. When a customer defaults on commission payment or repayment of
principal, the customer is downgraded to the non performing portflio. The non performing portfolio is dealt with by
the Remedial Depariment within the Credit Division. Impainment charge fw oredit losses are afocated and
monitored regulary.

The debt securfies included in the investment portfolio are mainly sovereign risk. For analysis of investments by
courderparty and the defails of the composition of investments, and loans and advances, refer fo notes 6 and 7,
respectively. Informafion on credit risk relating to denivafive instruments is provided in note 11 and for
commitments and contingendies in nofe 24,
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Geographical concentration

a) The distribution by gecgraphical region for major categories of assefs, liabilities, commitmants and
contingencies and credit exposure accounts is as follows:

Kingdom |
AR 000 of Saudi | GCC and Europs Horth Other Total
Arabfa | Middie Easi America | Countries
Bssets
Cash and balances with SAMA 18,138,603 i 18,139,603
[uee from banks and other financial institubions ' 225,000 161,967 223,092 400,821 LM | 1,545.041
Investments and investmenl in associates, net 33,511,264 05 350 41,425 7106 1| 34,465,143
Loans and advances, nat 110,005,804 | 1,054,828 139,794 - 66,478 (111,306 904
Total 161,881,668 | 2,162,145 £04,211 907 827 100,690 | 165,456,741
Liabilities
Due to banks and other financial inshiutions 69,790 | 3329409 180,629 30,893 56,962 | 13,667,893
Custormers’ deposits 31,271,837 156,857 102,640 KTi 69,477 131,601,187
[Term kans . . . . . .
Debt securities & Sukuks [ 1,900,000 - | 2,447,601 - 282500 7,430,101
|
Total 1 3244627 | 3496266 | 2,701,080 31,268 2,938,939 142,399 181
Commitments and contingencies 58,295,149 851,245 | 5029,969 163,240 | 6,269,785 | 70,709, 591
Credit exposure (credit equivalent value) .
Commitments and confingencies 31,296,698 | 1,363,902 | 3,634,882 134,247 | 1,404,335 1 37,834,064
Desivatives 1,354,933 134,665 | 2,561,701 380,235 40 [ 444,574
sets
sk and balances with SAMA 15,233,244 - - - - | 15,233 244
e from banks and other financial institutions | 1,657,199 67,515 | 2868,023 LY Wy | 100,908 | 5,435,376
mvestments and investmenl i associates, net | 26,547 547 830,067 192,767 - 0,566 | 27 B69.04T
oans and advances, net 100,925 432 | 1,343 159 338,865 26,480 151,415 102,785,372
otal 144,353,422 | 2300781 | 3,190,656 968,191 201,880 151,123,939
Liabilities
Due fo banks and other financial instituions 400,968 | 4,757 827 370,842 76,083 56,738 | 5662468
Customers’ deposils 115,465 881 5,452 40,532 F | 58171 115,571,767
[Tenm loaeis - - | 1,778,306 - -| 1,778,306
Debt securties 1,500,000 - | 2417,265 - 2812776 | 7130041
Total |1 17,766 840 | 4,764,270 | 4,606,945 76,824 | 2927 685 (130,142 582
Commitments and contingencies 51802511 477057 | 4,696,111 132324 | 3.58{1331 | 60,688,634
Credit exposure [credit equivalent value}
Commitments and conlingencies 29,920,523 FAGT | 1,840,135 26,968 : 647 753 | 32,932,540
Perfvatives 2066 437 163,916 | 3,524,432 539,583 - | 6,204 378
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34

Credit squivalent amounts reflect the amaunts that result from transiating the Bank's credit related commitments
and contingencies and derivalives lFabifties infe the risk equivalent of loans using credit conversion factors
prescribed by SAMA. Credit conversion factor is maant b capture the polential credit sk related to the exercise of
the commitment.

b} The distribuiion by gecgraphical concentration of non - performing loans and advances and
impairment for credit losses are as follows:

2013 20z
Allowance for Allowance for
Non impairment of Wen imspairmant of
SAR * 000 . performing, net | creditlosses | performing, nal  credit bosses
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 1,517,374 (2,218,307 1,044 680 (1,552,295
4
Total 1,517,374 [ {2,218,307) 1,044 634 {1,552 295

Allywance fos impaiment of credit losses indudes spedfic and oollective provisions.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as special commission rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Bank classifies
exposures to market nsk into either rading or non-trading or banking-book,

The markel risk for the trading beok is managed and monifored using VaR methodofogy. Market risk for non-frading
book is managed and monitored using a cambination of VaR, stress testing and sensitivity analysis.

a) Market risk -Trading book

The Board has set limits for the acceptable tevel of risks in managing the krading book. In order lo manage the
rarket risk in trading book, the Bank applies on a daily basis a VaR {Value at Risk) methodelogy in order to assess
the market risk positions held and also to estimate the potential economic loss based on a set of assumplions and
changes in markef conditions.

A VaR methodelogy estimates the potential negative charge in market value of a portfolio af a given confidence
level and over a specified time herizon. The Bank uses simulation models to assess the possible changes in the
market value of the trading book based on hisforical data. YaR models are usually designed to measure the market
risk in & normal market environment and therefore the use of YaR has limitations because il is based on historical
comelations and volatilities in market prices and assumes thal the future movements will follow a skalisbical
distribution.

The VaR thal the Bank measures is an estimate, using 2 confidence level of 99% of the potential loss that is not
expecled to be exceeded if the current market positions were to be held unchanged for one day. The use of 98%
confidence level depicts that within 2 one-day herizon, losses exceeding YaR figure showld oceur, on average, not
more than once every hundred days.

The VaR represents the risk of portfolios at the close of a business day, and il does not accounl for any losses that
may occur beyond the defined confidence interval. The aciual trading resulfs however, may differ from the VaR
calculafions and, in particular, the caleulation does not provide a meaningful indicafion of profits and losses in
stressed market conditions.

To everoome the VaR limilations mentioned abave, the Bank also camies oul siress tests of its portfolio to simulate
conditions outside normal confidence intervals. The potential losses ocourring under stress test conditions are
reported reqularly to the Bank's ALCO commitiee for their review.

The Bank’s VaR related infoemation for he year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are follows:
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? Special

: Foreign exchange | commission rate ; Owerall Trading
SAR © 000 rate risk
2013
¥aR as at Decembar 31, 2013 49 3,867 3,873
Average VaR for 2013 123 1,367 1,381
Maximum VaR for 2013 617 4,230 4,247
Minimusn VaR for 2013 5 211 287
2012

. VaR as al December 31, 2012 18 2.902 2,990
Average VaR for 2012 151 1,969 1,876
Maximum WaR for 2012 654 4 564 4,990 !
Minimum VaR for 2012 Eh 588 565 '

Overall Trading VaR incorporates compensation effectof posifions coming from realized PAL in foreign currencies
b) Market risk non- trading hook

Markel risk on non-trading book mainly arises from the special commission rate, foreign currency exposures and
equity price changes.

i} Special commission rate risk

Special commission rate risk arises from the possibility that the changes in special commission rates will affest
either the fair values or the future cash flows of the financiat instruments. The Board has established special
commission rate gap limils for stipulated periods. The Bank monitors positions daily and uses hedging strategies
to ensure maintenance of positions within the established gap limits.

The following table depicts the sensitivity 10 a reasonable possible change in special commission rates, with other
variables held constant, on the Bank’s consolidaled statement of income or equity. The sensifivity of the special
commission inceme is the effect of the assumed changes in special commission rates with a lowest level at 0%,
on the net special commission income for one year, based on the foaling rate non-trading financial assets and
financial liabilities held as at December 31, 2013, including the effect of hedging instruments. The sensitivity of
equity is calculated by revafuing the fixed rate available for sale finandal assefs, induding the effect of any
associated hedges as at December 31, 2013 for the effect of assumed changes in special commission rafe. The
sensitivity of equity is analyzed by matusily of the asset or swap. Al the banking book exposures are monitored

|
SAR' 000 2012
Sensitivity of
special
Cumrency |BPS change | commission Sensitivity of Equity Tota!
income
6 manths Over 6§ Ower 1 Qver
orless | monthto 1 year to 5 years
| year § years
usD +00 {123,678) {650} (43) (2,953 [321) (3,917)
-100 1.207 §50 41 2,963 ry| 391m7
SAR +100 (72,193} {1,643 ' (2,842) (27,300) (185,109 (217,499)
100 20,012 1.643 _ 2,842 27,300 185,109 217,499
| |

and analyzed in surency concenfrations and refevant sensitivities are disclosed in SAR thousands,
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~ SAR'BOD 2012
Senstivity of |
specia '
Currency |BPSchange | comenission Sensitivity of Equity Total
ECome
& months Over & Ot 1 Chver
of kss manth e year la S yeas
year 5 years

usD +103 (127.224) {1,395 {255) (1,987} {858) (4,594

100 83,756 1,395 255 | 1,967 959 4 595

SAR +100 {39,731) {3.223) (60} - - §3,283)

-1 12882 3,223 a0 - - 3283

Special commission rate sensifivity of assets, liabilities and derivatives

The Bank manages exposure to the effects of various risks associated with fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
markef special commission rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets fimits on the level of
mismatch of special commission rate re-pricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily by the Bank's

Treasury.

The lable below summarises the Bank™s exposure to special commission rate risks. Included in the table are he
Bank's financial instruments at caerying amaunts, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dafes.

The Bank is exposed to special commission rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and
liahilities and derivative instruments that mature or re-price in a given pericd. The Bank manages this fisk by matching

the re-pricing of assets and liabilities through risk management strategies.
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Hen
SAR 000 Within 3 312 -5 Crvae 5 commission
mionths months years years bearing Totaf
2M3
Assels :
Czsh znd balences wih SAWA 9454935 - B,654 668 18,139,603 |
Dug o basks @ sbe dcansiz nsitilons ZhEATY - - - 1276 M7 1,545,081
Irvesiments and nvestTer! i essacates nel 079,542 17 58551 4,495 146 2,584,954 T18667T 34465 143
Lazag and advatces, el 67 732058 ASTATE + 5153981 320102 22477 | 111,305,904
Frogerty and eguipment net B19918 £18.918 |
Ciner ass2ls 3980415 108015 °
Total assets 86565409 49573110 12,660,127 5785 966 1EAT1962 | 4T0.0586,674
Liabilikies and shareholders” aquily
s b banks ard cies frarcal instib foas 2543736 ABH, 750 - 555,407 3,667,893
Custorers’ deposits /AT HS 4 585872 1,560,158 - BS527912 | 131,601 187
Tarm kars - - -
Ceal securities and Suk.ak - 5,230,101 1,900,000 - 7,130,901
Crher liabilt'zs - - 4,440 862 4,440,862
Sharehalders’ e Jity - 23,218,631 23.218.631
I

Total liablities and shareholders' equity 41 760,981 5 464,622 7,190 259 1,500,004 113,740,612 170,056,674
Mai zap babween asz2is and Fabities 44804428 44,108,588 5468 868 3085566 | (98.265R50) -
Nei gap betaeen derealive fnancia’ sssraments [50448,523] 5718103 44,183,186 55234 -
Total commession rafe sens itivity gap 15.644.005) 48 8186591 49 653,054 4441200 | |96.268.850)
Cumulativa commission rata sensilivity gap |55 08 5) 44 174,555 93827 550 18,268,850
2012
Assots
Cash ang balances wih SAkA Ear 37 TR T 15233544
Cua from Zaeks and otfer drancig nsifubons 4 B45 B4 - - - E3B.T70 EASEITE
mvestTents and investmeantin agsosiakes et 5830 15396239 4,363,500 1,297 677 ET4 238 27 BEG.S47
Lears and advarces, net 63 219103 21,6340.033 835250 AEMT03 #1303 | 102785372
Praperty ard equapment. net - - 445,305 641,305
Criler 255605 - - - 5042 058 6 012,053
Tolal assefs BT 6o 479 37,029,337 12.592,73) 4532380 13.85.3,361 157,778,302
Liabil ities and sharshobders” aquily
[ue o banks ard osher finanaal instib ions 4 776428 552500 i - - 381,040 5562 468
Cusomess’ deposits MA15520 17,146,857 2301 256 4,708,184 | TESTLTET
Term loars 1776305 - - - 1 TTE.NS
Debt sesurijes 5230041 00000 ERECI
Cther liabiliies - - 4847 302 £.947 902
Shareheldess” 2quity - - 225EEA1E F2BRESTS
Totallizbilities and shareholders' equity Az 17,709,307 ! 753,207 1,920 <10 926E3A44 | 1577732
Met gaz betvear asseis ant abRies 49,685,725 19,520,025 5161 433 2632380 | (T3A00563) -
Nel gaz bedweer derivadye inancid nstramants [43961 361} 294 0 37495373 A73.004 . .
Tatal commisslon rate 3ansHivity gap 5425364 24712019 42 653 A6 3005474 [ (TH.BD563)
Cumulative commission rate sensitivity gap £425,34 31,138,283 73,705 0949 TERI0,563 - -

Met gap between derivative firancial instruments represents the net notional amounls of these financial
instruments, which are used o manage the special commission rate risk.

The effective special commission rate {effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when
used in a present value calculation, resulls in the camying amount of the instrument. The rale is a historical rate for
a fixed rate instrument carried at amartized cost and a current market rate for a floating rate instrumenl or an

instrument carried at fair value.
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ii} Cusvency Risk

Currency risk represents the risk of change in the value of financial instruments due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Board has set mits on positions by currencies, which are monitored daily, and hedging
sirategies are also used to ensure thal positions are maintained within the limits.

The tabie below shows the currencies to which the Bank has a significan exposure as at December 31, 2013 and
2012 on its non-irading monetary assets and liabilities and forecasted cash flows. The analysis caiculates the
effect of reasonable possible movement of the currency rate against SAR, with all ather variables held constant,
on the consolidated statement of income (due to the fair value of the currency sensitive non-trading monelary
assets and liabilities} and equity {due to change in fair value of commission rate swaps used as cash flow hedges).
A positive effect shows a potential increase in the consolidated staiement of income or equity; whereas a negative
effect shows a potential net reduction in the consolidated statement of income or equity.

SAR' 000 2013 palyli
Currency ; Changsin Effect on Net Effect on Change in Effect on Net Effecton
Exposures Currency Income Equity Cumency Income Equity
Rate in % Rate in %
usp +5 (11,815} 4 +5 {34,114} 1,060
i EUR -3 {T3) -3 {1,620)

Thefe is no material impact on equity and net income due to change in other foreign currencies.
iy Currency position

The Bank manages exposure to effects of fluctuations in prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financiat
position and cash flows. The Board of Directors sets limits on the level of exposure by curency and in lotal for
both ovemight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. At the end of the year, the Bank had the

following significant net exposures denominated in foreign cunrencies:

2013 2012
SAR' D00 {Short) flong | (Shord}/ long
US Doltae {39,497) {446,715)
Eurg 24,359 53,983
Pound Sterling 165 304
Other 4,144 6,241
Total {10,829} {385,387

ivl Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk refers to the risk of decrease in fair values of equities in the Bank's non-trading investment
portfolic as a resutt of reasonable possible changes in levels of equity indices and the value of individual stocks.

The effect on the Bank's equity investments held as available for sale due fo reasonable possible change in equity

indices, with all other variables held constanlis as folows:
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'SR 00D 2013 2012
Market Change in equity Effest on  |Change inequity Effect on
Indices Price % market value Price % markst value
Tadawul | 5 15012 | +5 20,551
I :
Tadawul -5 i 50T 5 {20,551

There is no material impact on market valug dug to changs in prices of listed internaticnal securities.
Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its net funding requirements, Liquidity fisk can be
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause ceriain sources of funding to become
unavailable immediately, To mitigate this risk, management has diversified funding sources and assets are
managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining an appropriate balance of cash, cash equivalents, and readily
marketable securities.

The daly liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenarios
covering both noemal and more severe market conditions. All liquidity policies and procedures are subjech to review
and approval by AECO. Daily reporis cover the liquidity position of both the Bank and operating subsidiaries. A
summary report, including any exceptions and remedial action taken, is submitted regularly to ALCO.

In accordance with the Banking Confrol Law and the Regulations issued by SAMA, the Bank maintains a statufory
deposit with SAMA equal to 7% of total cusfomers' demand deposits, and 4% of due to banks and other financial
institutions {excluding balances due to SAMA and non-resident forelgn currency deposits), saving deposits, ime
deposits, margins of letters of credit and guarantes, excluding all type of repo deposits. In addition to the statutory
deposit, the Bank alse maintains liquid reserves of not less than 20% of its deposit fiabilities, in the form of cash,
Saudi Government securifies or assets which can be converted inte cash within a period not exceeding 30 days.
The Bank can also raise additional funds through repo facilities avaifable with SAMA against its holding of Saudi
Government securities up to ¥5% of the nominal values of securities.

ay Maturity analysis of assats and liabillties
The table below summarizes the mafurity profile of the Bank's assets and liabiliies. The expected maturities of
assets and liabiliies have been determined on the basis of the remaining peried at the reporting date fo the

contractual maturity date and do not taks into account of the effective maturities as indicated by the Bank's deposit
retention history. Management manitors the maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.
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! Within 3 312 1-5 Over 5 No fixed Total
SAR' 000 manths months years years maturity
2013
Assels
Cash and balances with SAMA 0.464,935 - - - £,654, 668 18,138,603
Due fram banks and other financial
institutions 268874 - - - 1,276,247 1,545,094
Investments and investment in
associates, net 7,725,408 | 16,222,508 | 6,109,408 3,681,154 FIR667 | 34,465,143
Loans and advances, net 43,315,298 | 19,194,683 | 25043762 | 19,601,421 4,151,740 | 111,306,304
| Praperty and equipment, net . - - - 619,918 6519848
" Other asssfs - - - - 3,980,015 3,950,015
Total assets 60,792,515 | 35,417,191 | 31,153,168 | 23,292,575 | 19,401,225 | 170,055,674
Liabilities and shareholders” equity
Due te banks and other nancial
instutions 2643, 736 468,750 - - 555,407 3,667,593
Customers' deposits 37,253,077 | 4995872 | 2477547 25000 [ 86,849,691 | 131,601,187
Tem lbans - - - - - -
Dbt securities and Sukuks - - | 5,230,101 1,980,000 - 7,130,104
. Other liabdities - - - - 4. 440,862 4,440,862
Shareholders' equity - - - - | 23216631 | 23,216,631
Tofal liabilities and shareholders'
equity 38,896,813 | 5,464,622 | 7707648 1,925,000 | 115,062,591 | 170,056,674
Yidthin 3 312 i-5 Civer 5 Mo fixed
SAR 00 menths months years YEars maturity Total
2012
Assets
Cash and balances with SAMA, 8057537 - - - TATSTOF | 1523324
Fhae fram banks and other fnancial
institutions 4 546 606 - . - 888,770 5,435,378
Investments and investmenl in
associates, net 4505460 | 15358491 | 5297 43 1,634 327 874,238 | 27,665.%7
Loans and advances, nef 40,132,752 | 12988,087 | 24825076 | 19,673,675 5,155,782 | 102,785,372
Praperty and equipment, net - - - - 641,305 641,305
Other assals - - - - 6,012,058 6,012 058
Total assets 57242355 28,356,578 | 30122507 | M,308,002 | 20747850 | 157.777.302
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 4 778,928 562,500 - - 328,040 5,662,468
Customers' deposifs 30,066,025 | 17145807 | 2706145 25000 | B5B27,789 | 115,571,767
Tem loans - | 1.778,306 - - - 1,778,305
Debt securities - - b 5,230,041 1,900,000 - 713004
Other liab#ities - - - - 4,947 902 4 947 902
Sharehokders' equity - - - - | 22685818 | 226865813
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity 34,844,954 | 19487613 | 7.936,186 1825000 | 03,583,540 | #6F.777.302
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b} Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
The lable below summarizes the maturity profite of ihe Bank's financial liabilities as at Becember 31, 2013 and 2012
based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. As special commission paymenls up lo contractual
maturity are included in the table, tolals do not match with the consolidated statement of financial pesition. The
contractua! maturities of liabilities have been determined based on the remaining period at the reporting date lo the
contractral maturity date and do not lake inte account the effechive expected maturities. The Bank expects that many
customers will not request repayment on the eariest date the Bank could be required to pay and the table does not
reflect the expected cash flows indicated by the Bank's deposil retention history.

Within 3 312 1-5 Over 5 Ho fixed Tofal

SAR 000 months months years years maturity

2013

Due fo banks and ather financial

institutions 3,112,622 1,437 - - 555407 | 3,569,466
Customers’ deposits ITATe 04 . 5023762 2,554,335 28107 | 86,949,691 | 131,734,936
Term kans - - - - - .
Debt securities and Sukuks 56,553 169,65% 5,618,221 1,941,720 -1 7786163
Total 40,448,216 5,194,858 8,172,566 [ 1,969,827 | 87,405,098 | 143,190,565
Dariatives:

Contraciual amount payable ' [15,010,479) 6,041,898 | 10,022,458 {847 136) - 208,74
- Contractual amouni receivable 71,519,938 | (14,156,3B8) | (62,140,103) 761,040 < | [4,015543)
Total undiscounted financial

lizbilities 96,857,675 1 (2,919,632) | {43,945,079) | 4,883,704 | 57405008 (139,381,753
a0z

Due o banks and other financia!

institutions 5,341,965 1,147 - - 321,040 [ 5664126
Customers deposits n0pe 65 | 17342534 2.847 218 26622 | 65,627,789 (115,534,238
Term bans 554 1,787,832 - - - | 1,793.366
Diekt securities 56,553 169,650 5807239 | 1,982,006 - | B.015457
Total 35493521 | 19,301,142 8,655,057 | 2008638 {65 0648,820 131 407,187
Cerivatfves:

Contractual amount payatds {42 546,032} 8,034,231 34,384,760 | 3,576,630 - 3440589
Contractual amount receivable Q2617148 | {14,781.238) | (80.954.478) | {4,002 485 - | [7,121,058)
Total undiscounted financial

liabilities 85,564,857 | 12,554,135 | (37 914,661} 1,582 780 |B5048 820 127735720

36 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ransaction
between market participants at the measuremenl date. The {air value measuerement is based on the presumption
that the transaction fo sell the assef or transfer the fiability takes place either in the principal markel for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Forfinancialinstruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less objecive, and
requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing
assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument,
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Valuation models

Valuation techaiques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with simifar
instruments for which market observable prices exist. Assumplions and inputs used in valuation techniques include
risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and ofher premium used in estimating discount rates, bond
and equity prices and foreign currency exchange rates.

The abjsctive of valuation techniques is to arive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be
received to sell the asset or paid o transfer the liabilify in an orderly ransaction between market participants al the
measurzment dale. The Bank uses widely recognized valuation models for delermining the fair value of common
and simpder financial instruments. Observable prices of modal inputs are usvally available in the market for fisted
debt and equity securities, axchange-traded derivatives and simple over-the-counter derivatives such as interest
rate swaps.

Availability of cbservable market piices and model inputs reduces #he need for management judgment and
estimation and also reduces the unceranty associated with determining fair values. Availability of observable
market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and markets and is prone [o changes based on specific
events and general condifions in the financsal markets.

Valuation models that employ significant uncbservable inputs require a higher degree of management judgment
and estimation in the delemination of fair value. Management judgment and estimation are usually required far
selechon of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the financia!
instrument being valued, determination of the probability of counterparty default and prepayments and selection of
appropriate discount rafes. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for- any other factors, such as
liquidity risk or model uncertainties; to the extent that the Bank believes that a third party market participant would
take them into account in pricing & transaction. Fair values aims also to reflecl the credit risk of the instrument and
include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Bank and the counferparty where appropriafe.

Yaluation Framewark

The Bank has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This framework
includes a Market Risk Department, which is independent of Front Office management and reports o the Chief Risk
Officer. and which has overall responsibility for independently verifying the results of rading and investment
operations and all significant fair value measurements. Specific confrols include;

- verification of observable pricing;

- re-performance of model yaluations;

- & review and approval process for new models and changes to models involving Risk Division;

- back-testing of models against observed market ransactions;

- analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements

When third parly informalion, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used fo measure fair value, Markel Risk

Cepartment assesses and documents the evidence obtained from the third parfies to suppori the conclusion that
such valuations meet the requirements of [FRS. This includes;

-verifying thal the broker ar pricing service is approved by the Bank for use in pricing the relevant type of financial
instrument;

-understanding how the far value has been arrived at and the extent to which it represents acteal market
fransacfions;

-when prices for similar instruments are used to measure fair value, how these prices have been adjusted to reflect
the characteristics of the instrument subject ko measurement; and

-if a numizer of quotes for the same financial instrument have been cbtained, then how fair value has been
determined using those quotes

56



BANQUE SAUDI FRANSI
NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Any significant valuation issue is reported & a regular frequency {in additicn to whenever desmed necessary) fo tha
Bank Matke: Risk Commiltee in order to lake appropriate actions accordingly.

Determination of fair vatue and fair value hierarchy
The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing fhe fair value of inancial instruments:

Level 1: quaoted prices in active markets for the same instrument {i &, without modification or repackaging)

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation technigques for which 41
signdficantinputs are based on observable market data; and

Levef 3: valuation technigques far which any signfficantinput is not based on observable market data.

SAR' 00 Leve| 1 | Level 2 Level 3 Total

203

Financial assets

Dervative financial instruments - 2,7T2572 - | 2772572

Financial investments designated at FWIS itrading) 201,932 124,239 - 326111

Financial investments available for sale §938,169 2,617,553 4,291,158 7,867,180

Total 1,200,101 5514664 | 4,251,158 | 10,9655923
: Financial Liahikities

Derteative nancial nstruments negative fair vake - 1,674 205 - | 1,674,205

Total - 1,674,205 - | 1,674,205

212

Financial assets

Dervalive financial instruments - £482 042 - | 4402042

Financial investments designated af Fv1S{rading) 230,319 80,482 - 310,781

Financial investments avaiable for salke 1,320,041 1,385,085 | 35325635 | 6737661

Total 2050360 | 5957.589 | 3532535 | 11540484
1 Financial Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments negative fair value - 2 530997 - | 2539987

Total [ 2538997 -| 2539097 |

Finandial inveskments avaélable for sale indude Mudarabah SAR 4,026 million (2012; SAR 3,253 million) which are

classified as level 3.
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for the fair value
measuremeants in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
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Financial investments classified as available for sale {AFS)

SAR' 000 - 2013 2012
i Balance at the beginning of the year 3,532,515 3,714,041
Other comprehenshee income / ksses) {1,000) 1,326
Issues ; 2440000 1,500, 00}
Seftlemenis (1,720,370 (1682832
Balance at the end of the year _ 4,251,138 3,532,535

The fair values of on-statement of financial position financial instruments, except for held to maturity and other
financial instruments held at amortized cost are not significantly different from the carrying values included in the
consolidated financial staternents. The fair values of loans and advances, commission bearing customers’ deposits,
debt securities, due from and due to banks which are caried at amartized cost, are not significantly different from e
carrying values included in the consolidated financial stafements, since the current market commission rates for
similar financial instuments are not significandly different from the confracted rates, and due to the short duration of
due from and due to banks.

The estimated fair values of the held to maturity investmenls and other investments held at amortized cost, are based
on quoted market prices when available or pricing models when used in the case of certain fixed rate bonds.
Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and fair value estimates. The fair values of these
investments are disclosed in note B. The fair values of derivatives are based on the quoted market prices when
available of by using he appropriate valuation technique.

37 Related party transactions and balances

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Bank transacts business with related parfies. In the opinion of the
management and the Board, the refated parly transactions are camied out on an arm's length basis. The related party
transactions are governad by limils set by the Banking Confrol Law and Regulations issusd by SAMA. The balances
as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 resulting from such ransackions included in the consolidated financial statements
are as follows:

r
SAR 000 ! 2013 2012
CA-CIE Group

Due from banks and other financial institutions 53,858 1,658 360
Due to banks and ether financial institutions 118,504 191,525
Derivatives at faim valee, net 47,675 14,371
Commitnents and confingencies 1,051,105 1,805,196
Associates

Investments 166,270 171,948
Leans and advances - 50,010
Due to banks and other financial institufions 75,760 45,023
Customers depasits . ) 18,065
Commitments and confingencies - - 5050
Directors, auditors, other major shareholders’ and their affiliaies

Loans ard advances 2,323, 046 2541138
Customers' deposits 3,991,011 4 022 598
Derivatives at fai value, net - i {68,022
Commitments and contingencies 561,650 1,129,506
Bank's mutuzl funds

Investments 70,819 66,461
Derivatives af fair vafue, ret . 5222
Custormers' deposits 234,779 ) 378,464
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35

Other major sharehglders represent sharehotdings excluding the foreign shareholder of more than 5% of the Bank's
share capital,

income and expenses pertaining to transactions with related parties induded in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

SAR 000 i 2013 212
Special commission income
-CA-Ci8 group ) 1148 27
-Diectors, auditors, other major sharehoiders’ and their affiliates ' 48,145 60,141
-hespciates - 1,580
-Bank's mutual funds 44 52
Total Special commisskon income 49,337 64,512
Spedial commission expense
-Ca-CIB group 390 155
-Diwectoes, auditors, other major sharsholders’ and their affiliates 45,140 40,657
-Associates 12 100
-Bank's mutual funds 3,535 3,275
Total Special commission expense 48 077 M 187
Fees commission incoeme and others, net 13,985 12,405
Drectors’ lees 1,852 3,350
 Otheer general and administrative expensas 1,108 | 1,128

The total amount of short term benefits paid to key managemenl personnel during the year was SAR 113 million
{2012: SAR 111 million}. The key management personnef are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly.

Capital adequacy

The Bank's objectives when managing capital are, to comply with the capital requirements set by SAMA; to
safequard the Bank’s ability to continue as & going cencern; and to maintain a strong capital base. Capital adequacy
and the use of regulatory capital are monitered daily by the Bank’s management.

The Bank moniltors the adequacy of its capital using ratios established by SAMA. These ratios measure ca pital
adequacy by comparing the Bank's eligible capital with fts statement of financial position assets, commitments and
notional amount of derivatives at a weighted amount lo reflect their relafive risk, SAMA requires halding the minimum
level of the regulatory capital of and maintaining a ratio of total regulatory capital lo the risk-weighted asset (RWa) at
or above the agreed minimum of 8%.

SAMA has issued the framework and guidance regarding implementation of the capital reforms under Basel lil - which are
effective from January 1, 2013. Accordingly, the Group's consclidated Risk Weighted Assets {R¥A), total capital and
refated ratios on a consolidated group basis, calculated under the Basel ||l Famework. For the purposes of presentation,
the RWs, tolal capital and relaled ratios as at December 31, 2013 are cakulsted using the framework and the
methodokbgies defined under the Basel Il framework. The comparative figures have nol been reinstated in line with Base!
Il acoord.
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SAR 0G0 i 2013 22
- Credit Risk RWA 153855018 140,626,870
i Operafional Risk RWYA §979,637 8,584,137
Market Risk RWA 3,048 275 3,300,559
Total RWA 165,883,830 152,511,576
Tier 1 Capital 23,056,237 22,348,020
Tier M Capitat 2,793,813 2,793,700
Tolal Tier | & |l Capital i 25,850,040 2514172
Capital Adequacy Ratio % :
Tier | railio 13.90% 14.65%
Tier | + Tier || ratio 15.58% 16.49%%

39 Investment management, brokerage and corporate finance services

The Bank offers investment services to its customers through iis subsidiary, which indude managemeni of certain
investment funds in consultation with professional investment advisors as well as brokerage services Income from
the subsidiaries is included in the consolidated statemenl of income undes fees and commission income, net

Determining whether the Bank controds such an investment fund uwsually depends on the assessment of the
aggregate economic interests of the Bank in the Fund {comprising of is investments, any carried profit and
expected managament fees) and the investors' rights to remove the Fund Manager. As a result of the above
assessmant, the Bank has concluded that it acts as an agent for the investors in all cases, and therefore has nol
consolidated these funds. However, the Bank's share of these funds is intluded in the available for sale
investments and fees eamed are disclosad under related party ransaciions. The value of the mutural funds and
other private investment portfolio managed by the Bank through its subsidiary was SAR 6,625 million {2012: SAR
3,707 million).

The Bank through its subsidiary offers islamic investment managemenl sendces to its customers, which include
management of certain investment funds in consultation with professional investment advisors, having net asset
walues as of December 31, 2013 lotaling SAR 3,307 million {2012: SAR 1,777 million).

40 BASEL |l - Capital Structure
Certain disclosures on the Bank’s capital structure are required lo be poblished on Bank's websile. These

disclosures will be published on the Bank's website www. alfransi.com.sa as required by SAMA. Such disdosures
are not subject to reviewiaudit by the extemal auditors of the Bank.

41 BASEL NI Pillar 3 Disclosure

Under Basel [H pillar 3, certain guantitative and qualitative disclosures are required, and these disclosures will be
made availaide on the Bank's website www.aliransi.com.sa and the annual report, respectively as required by the
Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency.

42 Prospective changes in International Financial Reporting Framework
The Bank has chosen not o eary adopt the following amendments to existing standards and newly issued

standards buf nof yet effective for the Bank's accounting years beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and is
currently assessing their impact.
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43

IFRS 10 amendment thal provides consolidation relief for investments funds applicable from 1 January 2014, This
mandatory consofidaion refief provides that a qualifying inveskment enfity is required o account for investments in
confroled entities as well as investments in assocfates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss provided
it fulfils certain condiions with an exception being that subsidiaries that are considered an extension of the
investmenl entity’s investing actvities.

tAS 32 amendment applicable from 1 January 2014 clarify that &) an entity cumently has a legally enforceable right
to off-set if that right is not contingent on a future event and enforceable both in the noemal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency o bankruptcy of the entity and ali counterparties; and b) gross setflement is
equivatent to net setlement if and only if the gross sstlement mechanism has features that eliminate or result in
insignificant credit and liquidity risk and process receivables and payables in a single seftfemenl process or cycle.

|AS 35 amendment applicable from 1 January 2014 address ihe disclosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets limiting disclasures requirements if that amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal.

IFRS 8 Financial instruments (2010): revised version of IFRS 9 was originally applicable from 1 January 2015 but
the effective date now has been defayed.This incorporates revised requirements for the cdassificaion and
meastrement of financial liabilities and caries over the existing derecognition requirements from 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,

Gomparative figures

Prior year figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to conform te current year's presentation.

Board of Directors approval

The consolidated financial stalements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 04, 2014
comesponding to 4 Raby™ ai-Thaany 1435H
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